
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Created: 07/16/2019 • Last updated: 11/02/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME ONTECH CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name OnTECH 

(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of Regents Authorized Charter School 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION Syracuse 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 12/2016 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 09/2018 

INSTRUCTION 
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f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized 

schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The mission of OnTECH is to promote college, career and life readiness for under credited, disconnected 

and at risk youth living in Syracuse, enabling them to graduate from high school as life long learners, 
prepared socially, emotionally and academically to lead fulfilling lives, contributing back to the 

community. 
The objectives of OnTECH are: 
• To create a community of members who aspire to and engage in life long learning while understanding 

their potential as contributors in society. 
• To provide all students with a bedrock of math, English and science literacy with the objective to situate 

all students on an educational pipeline and identify as life long learners. 
• To provide project based learning to enhance literacy, interpersonal and problem solving skills with the 

aim to have all students see their potential as change makers in our community. 
• To provide students with technical skills relating to the sustainable sciences as an entry into the 

workforce and/or a career pathway. 
• To awaken in all students a sense of curiosity for knowledge and learning which will enrich their 
personal lives and lead to careers of life long fulfillment. 

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools 

only) 
KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Brief heading followed by a description of each Key Design Elements 

(KDE). KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the school’s 

mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. The 

design elements may include a specific content area focus; unique student populations to be 

served; specific educational programs or pedagogical approaches; unique calendar, schedule, or 
configurations of students and staff; and/or innovative organizational structures and systems. 

Variable 1 At Risk Student Population.
OnTECH Charter High School will serve at risk students,
students who have dropped out of the Syracuse School
District program or on the cusp of dropping out or are new
Americans/refugee students who, by age or prior education,
have not been able to integrate into the public school district
grade levels. A School that has this model is the
International High School at Lafayette in Brooklyn, New York.
This school, similar to OnTECH, is a full year high school
program and students represent more than a dozen
ethnicities and nationalities. The SIOP model and project
based learning have been effective approaches to English
language learners at the International High School. 

Variable 2 Career & Technical. 

2 / 9 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

The curriculum will be project based and connected to the
region’s indigenous industries and resources. OnTECH will
provide job skills and career and technical teaching enabling
students to attain employment upon graduation. The
students will be preparing for a future that will enable them
to begin a career or secure employment in growing
industries in the Central New York region and/or continue on
to secondary education. The curriculum will include the
requisite subjects and graduation requirements under New
York State Education Law, with a focus on career and 
technical training for sustainable sciences and technology,
specifically in the area of agriculture, agribusiness,
sustainable sciences and alternative energy. As a support to
the curriculum and the growth of students as employees in
the work force, OnTECH is establishing a mentoring
relationship between professionals from the industry and the
students. Apprenticeship and employment opportunities will
be part of the students’ education and training. In addition,
OnTECH has established a relationship with Morrisville State
College and SUNY Cobleskill, which also has technical
education programming in the sustainable sciences. Through
these relationships OnTECH is establishing an education
pipeline for OnTECH graduates into a post secondary field of
study that will lead to a fruitful career. Cornell Cooperative
Extension has informed us that there are only a few small
agriculture 

programs in high schools in the United States. However, this
model of building a relationship between a school and a
business borrows from the traditional technical schools 
(Baltimore Polytechnic) and the modern P Tech model
(Pathways in Technology Early College High School). The aim
is place the students on an educational pipeline with an
articulation of a career. A percentage of students will
continue with post secondary education and another
percentage will identify a career upon graduation from high
school, graduating with a trade certification or micro
credential. 

Variable 3 Project Based Curriculum.
Instruction is based on project learning, which involves
completing complex tasks that result in realistic product,
event, or presentation to the audience. Effective product
learning has five key characteristics:
• Project outcomes tied to the curriculum and learning goals
• Driving questions and problems lead students to the
central concepts or principles of the topic or subject area.
• Student investigations and research involve inquiry and
knowledge building.
• Students are responsible for designing and managing
much of their own learning.
• Projects are based on authentic, real world problems and
questions that students care about. 
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Research on learning projects having these qualities found
that students’ gains in factual learning were equal to or
better than those using more traditional classroom
instructional methods. But when the studies took time to 
measure gains on other learning skills, in particular, higher
order, 21st century skills, the learning gains were
significantly higher than learning gains in traditional settings,
especially in areas of critical thinking, mastery and self
esteem.1 In addition, studies show that project based
learning is an essential way to integrate speaking, writing,
listening and reading in teaching English Language
Learners.2 A high school model that fully integrates project
based learning throughout its curriculum is High Tech High in
San Diego. 

Variable 4 Brain based learning.
Brain based learning is the purposeful engagement of
strategies that applies to how our brain works in the context
of education. The design of the OnTECH schedule is based
on current brain based research. For example, the school will
operate on a trimester system throughout the school year.
Studies show that there is learning loss during the summer
causing student to loose gains in proficiency. In addition,
summer will be necessary time for students to accumulate
enough credits to graduate high school before they are
statutorily prohibited from attending high school. Second,
the school day will start later in the day. This year the
American Academy of Pediatrics issued a report calling on
middle and high schools to start later in the morning to
address sleep deprivation issues amongst adolescents.
Studies show that the circadian rhythm of teenagers
prevents them from going to sleep earlier than 11 p.m. and
teenagers need 8 9 hours of sleep a night. Sleep deprivation
is correlated to attention deficit, depression and undermines
test taking. In response to this research, OnTECH will start
the day at 10, allowing students to get the necessary
amount of sleep. Third, OnTECH has built in physical
education in the middle of the day. Research shows that
physical education during the day can enhance learning in
multiple ways. Physical activity gives your brain a break and
then resets it, with a charge of endorphins functioning as a
mood booster, enhancing self esteem. In addition, physical
activity enhances the neural synapsing of an adolescent’s
brain. For these reasons we have embedded physical
education between two blocks of classes and in the middle of 
the day. The young people in the community of New
Americans deal with depression. As young people, forced to
flee their home countries, they were exposed to chronic
stress early in life and as a result are prone to mental
problems such as anxiety and mood disorders later in life, as
well as learning difficulties. Post traumatic stress disorder
(PTSD) triggers changes in brain structure. Neuroplasticity is 
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Variable 5 

Variable 6 

Variable 7 

Variable 8 

Variable 9 

Variable 10 

Need additional space for 

variables 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

the term used to refer to the changes in the organization of
the brain as a result of experiences and research supports
the conclusion that traumatic stresses in an adolescent’s 
early life can have a disastrous effect on behavior and
learning ability. However, when students who experience
traumatic events are placed in a caring environment, “an
educated, discerning and reflexive teacher may be the vital
catalyst that sparks engagement in a stressed or
traumatized learner.”8 Thus, decisions regarding the school
schedule are based on current brain research to enhance the 
academic and social emotional learning of our special
populations. 

Social emotional Learning.
ONTECH will foster the socio emotional learning and growth
of its students. The curriculum will be infused with 
developing social competencies that can range from simple
eye contact to the more nuanced empathy and compassion.
The profoundly multicultural nature of our student body
makes the necessity for a common language of respect,
compassion and perseverance between our students
essential to maintaining a productive environment. To
address this issue in a differentiated manner, ONTECH will 
intrinsically infuse the school and classroom environment
and the Advisory Curriculum with the 16 Habits of Mind. The
Habits of Mind are an identified set of 16 problem solving,
life related skills, necessary to effectively operate in society
and promote strategic reasoning, insightfulness,
perseverance, creativity and craftsmanship. 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

(No response) 

No 

http://www.ontechcharter.com/ 

100 
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j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 81 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served 9 

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2019-20? 

No, just one site. 

School Site 1 (Primary) 

m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide information on Site 1 for the upcoming school year. 

Physical Address Phone Number District/CSD Grades to be 
Served at Site 
for coming year
(K 5, 6 9, etc.) 

Receives Rental 
Assistance for 
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

810 Willis Ave., 
Site 1 Syracuse, NY (315) 396 0558 Syracuse 9 10 No 

13204 
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m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

Name 

School Josh Schneider Leader 

Operati
onal Keil White 
Leader 

Complia 
nce Francis Coudriet 
Contact 

Complai 
nt Ellen Eagen 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin Omar Gonzalez 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After Ellen Eagen Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co-
located) space or in private 

space? 

Work Phone 

Private Space 

Alternate Phone Email Address 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109628919/yFPTXS6fVy/ 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109628919/nBJtmqxAKU/ 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 
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n1. Were there any revisions to No 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

ATTESTATION 

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Ellen Eagen 

Position President, Board of Trustees 

Phone/Extension  

Email  

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 
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Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/08/01 

Thank you. 
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Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Created: 07/16/2019 • Last updated: 11/02/2019 

ONTECH CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

REGENTS Authorized Charter School 

URL is not available https://data.nysed.gov/profile.php? 
instid=800000089183 

1 / 1 



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
	

	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	
	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	
	
	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	 	

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 
Created: 08/01/2019 • Last updated: 11/02/2019 

PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents authorized and NYCDOE authorized charter schools only. Complete the tables provided. 
List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved charter, and indicate whether 
the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all goals by November 1st. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

If performance data is not available by August 1st, please state this in the last column and update by 

November 1st. 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress
Toward Attainment of 
Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
1 

Aggregate Annual
Regents Goals Meet
State Average. 

Annual Regents
testing for
every tested subject 

Cohort Regents 

Goal Met or Not Met 

Not Met 

Indicate if data is not 
available. If/when
available, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take If Goal Is Not 
Met 

Our full cohorts have 
not yet taken
Regents exams. We
will have full cohort 
data to examine at 
the end of this school 
year. In the mean
time we have added 
an additional focus 
on Regents
preparation and
devoted more 
resources to Regents
preparation for our
students. We also 
added a Regents
Preparation program
during our Summer
Session. 

Our full cohorts have 
not yet taken
Regents exams. We
will have full cohort 
data to examine at 
the end of this school 
year. In the mean
time we have added 
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2 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Academ 
ic Goal 
3 

Academ 
ic Goal 
5 

Academ 
ic Goal 

Cohort Regents
Testing Goals Meet
State Average. 

80% Percent of The 
Aggregate Cohort
Graduation Rate. 

Academ 80% Percent of The 
ic Goal Subgroup Cohort
4 Graduation Rate. 

75% Percent On
Track to Graduate. 

80% Percent of The 
Aggregate Student
Persistence. 

testing goals
for ELA, math, 
science, Global 
History and US
History 

Not Met 

4 year and 5 year
graduation Not Met 
rate for all students 

4 year and 5 year
graduation
rate for students 
identified as 
economically
disadvantaged,
students with 
disabilities, and 
English language
learners 

% of cohort that has 
passed 3
out of 5 Regents
exams required for
graduation by their
3rd year of high
school 

% of students in a 
cohort that 
remain enrolled until 
they
graduate from the
high school 
program 

Not Met 

Not Met 

Not Met 

an additional focus 
on Regents
preparation and
devoted more 
resources to Regents
preparation for our
students. We have 
also added a Regents
Preparation program
during our Summer
Session. 

Data not available at 
this time. This 
information will be 
available when we 
have graduating
cohorts. 

Data not available at 
this time. This 
information will be 
available when we 
have graduating
cohorts. 

Data not available at 
this time. This 
information will be 
available in two 
years, when our first
cohort of students 
have finished their 
third year of high
school. 

Data not available at 
this time. This 
information will be 
available when we 
have graduating
cohorts. 

% of students 
identified as 

Academ 80% Percent of The 

economically
disadvantaged,
students with 
disabilities, and 

Data not available at 
this time. This 
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7 
ic Goal Subgroup Student

Persistence. 

Academ 
ic Goal 
8 

Academ 
ic Goal 
9 

Academ 
ic Goal 
10 

English language
learners in a 
cohort that remain 
enrolled 
until they graduate
from the 
high school program 

2. Do have more academic goals 

to add? 

No 

3. Do have more academic goals 

to add? 

No 

4. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals 

Organizational Goal 

The school has an 
effective school 
leadership team that
obtains staff 
commitment to a Org clearly definedGoal 1 mission and set of 
goals, allowing for
continual 
improvement in
student learning. 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

Evaluations (that
include a self
evaluation) are
completed at all tiers
of the organizational
chart. Specifically
board conducts 
evaluation mid year
of tri partite
administrative tier. 

Goal Met or Not Met 

Met 

information will be 
available when we 
have graduating
cohorts. 

If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

Not Met 

Roles and 
responsibilities for Roles and leaders, staff, responsibilities formanagement, and leaders, staff and 
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Org
Goal 2 

Org
Goal 3 

Org
Goal 4 

board members are 
clearly defined.
Members of the 
school community
adhere to defined 
roles and 
responsibilities. 

The school has clear 
and well established 
communication 
systems and
decision making
processes in place to
ensure effective 
communication 
across the school. 

The school 
successfully recruits,
hires, and retains key
personnel, and
makes decisions  
when warranted  to 
remove ineffective 
staff members. 

management are
captured in job
descriptions and
represented in
organizational chart. 

School uses email, 
group text, group
chat and weekly in
person meetings to
communicate and 
address systemic
issues and thought
partner on decisions.
School at its 
inception valued
egalitarian style
organization
structure; with 
growth School is
currently considering
relevance of tiered 
hierarchial structure. 

The school has used 
many website
platforms as well as
word of mouth and 
print media to recruit
and hire and retain. 
100 percent of the
staff wanted to 
return after the first 
year. However a
decision was made to 
remove ineffective 
staff members. 
Leading up to this
point, evaluations
were completed by
internal and external 
evaluators and 
proper
documentation was 
maintained to 
support removal. 

Met 

Met 

Met 

OnTECH continues a 
Head of School 
search. While the 
Board identified a 
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The school is fully
staffed with high
quality personnel to
meet all educational 

Org and operational
Goal 5 needs, including

finance, human 
resources, and 
communication. 

The school has 
established 

Org
Goal 6 

structures for 
frequent
collaboration among
teachers. 

The school ensures 
that staff has 
requisite skills,

Org expertise, and
Goal 7 professional

development 
necessary to meet
students’ needs. 

The school is 
currently staffed with
the exception of the
Head of School. 
Finding and retaining
high quality
personnel is a
challenge in Central
New York. The many
districts in the region
attract certified 
teachers. Education 
professionals in the
area still need to 
learn about the 
benefits of working in
the charter 
landscape 

Departments have
common planning
periods. In addition,
teachers are paired
with a consultant 
teacher who reviews 
and modifies the 
lesson plans,
focussing on
differentiation and 
enrichment. 

All staff go through a
rigorous application
process that includes
rountable discussions 
with administration, 
staff and student 
groups and Board
members. Resumes, 
including reference
checks, are carefully
reviewed and 
reference checks are 
made prior to offers
being made.
Professional 
development is 
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Met 

Met 

Met 

Head of School as of 
2019, that person
was not a typical
educator and did not 
find her skills a good
match for the school 
and left. The Board 
continues the search 
and has identified 
two potential
candidates. In the 
meantime, OnTECH 
operates wtih a
tripartite
administrative tier 
(Head of Academics,
Head of Operations,
Heads of Community
of Culture) this tier
was intentional in 
developing the
school, valuing
thought partnering
and a distribution of 
knowledge. 



	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	

	
	

	
	 	 	

	 	
	
	

	

	 	 	
	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	

	
	 	
	 	 	

	
	
	
	

	 	
	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	
	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	

	

	

	

	

offered based on 
needs of group and
organization. 

Org
Goal 8 

Org
Goal 9 

Org
Goal 10 

Org
Goal 11 

Org
Goal 12 

Org
Goal 13 

The school has 
systems to monitor
and maintain 
organizational and
instructional quality

 which includes a 
formal process for
teacher evaluation 
geared toward
improving
instructional practice. 

The school has 
mechanisms to solicit 
teacher feedback 
and gauge teacher
satisfaction. 

The school has a 
teacher evaluation 
process that has an
internal review and 
an external review. 
Teachers receive an 
internal evaluation 
based on a rubric 
that captures the key
design elements of
the school in the Met current 
developmental stage.
Teachers will also 
receive a review from 
an external 
evaluator, capturing
standard best 
practices. Teachers
review and discuss 
all evaluations with 
the Head of School. 

Teachers have 
weekly all staff
meetings in addition
to weekly individual
meetings with the
Head of Academics. 
In addition, climate 
surveys are regularly Met 
issued to gauge
teacher satisfaction 
and gather feedback
on whether the 
school is advancing
its key design
elements. 
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Org
Goal 14 

Org
Goal 15 

Org
Goal 16 

Org
Goal 17 

Org
Goal 18 

Org
Goal 19 

Org
Goal 20 

5. Do have more organizational No 

goals to add? 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 

2018-19 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Financial Goals 

The school has an 
accurate and Financia 
functional accountingl Goal 1 
system that includes
monthly budgets. 

Measure Used to 
Evaluate Progress 

Yes, the school has a 
comprehensive
accounting system
that maintains 
accurate records of 
all revenue and 
expenses, as well as
providing necessary
data for filing of all
required reports. The
school has engaged
the Charter School 
Business 
Management
company for billing
procedure and
maintenance of 

Goal Met or Not Met 

Met 

If Not Met, Describe 
Efforts School Will 
Take 

books. The budget
year is allocated
monthly for all 
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financial lines and is 
reviewed on an 
ongoing basis each
month and during
the fiscal year. 

Financia 
l Goal 2 

Financia 
l Goal 3 

Financia 
l Goal 4 

The school sets 
budget objectives
and regularly
analyzes its budget
in relation to those 
objectives. 

The school has 
allocated budget
surpluses in a
manner that is 
fiscally sound and
directly attends to
the social and 
academic needs of 
the students 
attending the school. 

The school has and 
follows a written set 
of fiscal policies. 

Budget objectives
are set annually and
analyzed on an
ongoing basis.
Budgets are
reviewed by
administration and 
by the Board of
Trustees to ensure 
that the school stays
on track with its 
budget plan. 

Yes. The school 
planning extends
over a five year
period, with
projections for core
needs of the student 
population and
instructional needs, 
as well for building
and facility
maintenance. 
Contingencies are
assessed and monies 
are segregated
based on anticipated
major projects. The
school takes fiscally
conservative 
approach to revenue
and expenses. 

The school has a 
Handbook of Fiscal 
Policies that is 
regularly reviewed by
the Board and that is 
vetted by
independent
auditors. 

Met 

Met 

Met 

Yes. The school has 
complied with all
state and federal 
reporting 
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Financia 
l Goal 5 

The school has 
complied with state
and federal financial 
reporting
requirements. 

requirements and
has timely met all
filings of Title
reporting, CSP grant
reports, State
Stimulus grant
reports and has a
clean audit with no 

Met 

deficiencies of its 
operations. 

7. Do have more financial goals No 

to add? 

Thank you. 
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Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Created: 07/22/2019 • Last updated: 10/31/2019 

ONTECH CHARTER HIGH SCHOOLSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: Audit Guide available within the portal or on the NYSED website 

at: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf. 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 981765 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 76 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 12844 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

38644 

59274 

97918 

1281 
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Board of Trustees 
OnTECH Charter High School 
Page 2 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the School as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and 
its cash flows for the period from December 13, 2016 (inception) to June 30, 2019 in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 21, 2019, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

Harrison, New York 
October 21, 2019 



      
        

      

      
        

        
      

      

      

      

      

OnTECH Charter High School 

Statement of Financial Position 
June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash $ 116,149 
Grants and contracts receivable 693,413 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 19,706 

Total Current Assets 829,268 

Property and equipment, net 482,534 
Security deposit 25,000 

$ 1,336,802 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 429,367 
Refundable advances 44,758 
Deferred rent, current portion 274,095 

Total Current Liabilities 748,220 

Deferred rent 116,464 

Total Liabilities 864,684 

Net assets, without donor restrictions 472,118 

$ 1,336,802 

See notes to financial statements
 3 



      
        

   

   
      

   

      

   

      

                  

OnTECH Charter High School 

Statement of Activities 
Period from December 13, 2016 (Inception) to June 30, 2019 

REVENUE AND SUPPORT 
State and local per pupil operating revenue $ 1,148,097 
Federal grants 849,688 
Contributions and grants 18,000 

Total Revenue and Support 2,015,785 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular education 1,068,249 
Special education 320,409

 Total Program Services 1,388,658 
Supporting Services 

Management and general 155,009

 Total Expenses 1,543,667

 Change in Net Assets 472,118 

NET ASSETS 
Beginning of year -

End of year $ 472,118 

See notes to financial statements
 4 



          

                                                   
                                                             

                                          

                                            

                                                                       

                                                                   

                                  

                                  

                                            

                                                     

                                            

                                                   

                                            

                                                     

                                          

                                            

                                                            

                                              
                                            

OnTECH Charter High School 

Statement of  Functional Expenses 
Period from December 13, 2016 (Inception) to June 30, 2019 

Program Services Management 
No. of Regular Special and 

Positions Education Education Total General Total 
Personnel Services Costs 

Administrative staff personnel 5 $ 84,673 $ 12,181 $ 96,854 $ 38,644 $ 135,498 
Instructional personnel 21 201,895 79,653 281,548 - 281,548 
Non-instructional personnel 2 18,563 3,703 22,266 - 22,266 

Total Salaries and Staff 28 305,131 95,537 400,668 38,644 439,312 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes 48,232 5,134 53,366 3,719 57,085 
Legal fees - - - 8,174 8,174 
Accounting/audit services - - - 18,500 18,500 
Other Purchased/professional/consulting services 166,823 52,083 218,906 20,960 239,866 
Facility expense 311,409 97,503 408,912 39,439 448,351 
Repairs and maintenance 24,879 7,790 32,669 3,151 35,820 
Insurance 5,523 1,729 7,252 699 7,951 
Utilities 25,972 8,132 34,104 3,289 37,393 
Supplies and materials 32,375 6,459 38,834 - 38,834 
Equipment/furnishings 17,765 5,562 23,327 2,250 25,577 
Staff development 5,674 1,776 7,450 719 8,169 
Marketing/recruitment 67,536 21,146 88,682 8,553 97,235 
Technology 19,617 6,142 25,759 2,484 28,243 
Student services 2,347 468 2,815 - 2,815 
Office expense 8,856 2,773 11,629 1,121 12,750 
Depreciation and amortization 26,110 8,175 34,285 3,307 37,592 

Total Expenses $ 1,068,249 $ 320,409 $ 1,388,658 $ 155,009 $ 1,543,667 

See notes to financial statements
 5 



        
      

     
       
       
      
        

      

     

      

                 

OnTECH Charter High School 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Period from December 13, 2016 (Inception) to June 30, 2019 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Change in net assets $ 472,118 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 

to net cash from operating activities
 Depreciation and amortization 37,592
 Deferred rent 390,559
 Changes in operating assets and liabilities 

Grants and contracts receivable (693,413) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (19,706) 
Security deposit (25,000) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 429,367 
Refundable advances 44,758

 Net Cash from Operating Activities 636,275 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY 
Purchases of property and equipment (520,126)

 Net Change in Cash 116,149 

CASH 

Beginning of year -

End of year $ 116,149 

See notes to financial statements
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OnTECH Charter High School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

1. Organization and Tax Status 

OnTECH Charter High School (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-profit educational 
corporation that was incorporated on December 13, 2016 to operate a charter school 
pursuant to Article 56 of the Education Law of the State of New York. The School was 
granted a provisional charter on December 13, 2016 valid for a term of five years and 
renewable upon expiration by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New 
York. The charter expires on June 30, 2021. The School’s mission is to identify, reach and 
teach students who thrive in non-traditional school settings, provide meaningful instruction 
for at-risk students including the new American populations, to help students integrate 
effectively into a school environment and community, and to provide students skill-based 
and project-based instruction, graduating them with meaningful, job-related skills. The 
School provided education to approximately 78 students in ninth grade during the 2018-
2019 academic year. 

Except for taxes that may be due for unrelated business income, the School is exempt from 
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and from state 
and local income taxes under comparable laws. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Net Assets Presentation 

Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into net 
asset categories established according to nature and purpose as follows: 

Net assets without donor restrictions - consist of resources available for the general 
support of the School’s operations. Net assets without donor restrictions may be used at 
the discretion of the School’s management and/or the Board of Trustees. 

Net assets with donor restrictions – represents amounts restricted by donors for specific 
activities of the School or to be used at a future date. The School records contributions as 
net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit 
their use either through purpose or time restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, 
that is, when a time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is fulfilled, net assets with 
donor restrictions are classified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in 
the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. The School had no 
net assets with donor restrictions as of June 30, 2019. 
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OnTECH Charter High School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Property and Equipment 

The School follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment with 
costs in excess of $2,500 and a useful life in excess of one year. Leasehold improvements are 
amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease, inclusive of all renewal periods, which are 
reasonably assured, or the estimated useful life of the asset which is five years. Purchased 
property and equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Minor costs of 
maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. All property and equipment purchased with 
government funding is capitalized, unless the government agency retains legal title to such 
assets, in which case it is expensed as incurred. 

Depreciation and amortization is recognized on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of such assets as follows: 

Furniture and fixtures 7 years 
Computers and equipment 3 and 5 years 

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment if the use of the asset significantly 
changes or another indicator of possible impairment is identified. If the carrying amount for the 
asset is not recoverable, the asset is written down to its fair value. There were no asset 
impairments for the period from December 13, 2016 (inception) to June 30, 2019. 

Refundable Advances 

The School records certain government operating revenue as refundable advances until 
related services are performed, at which time it is recognized as revenue. 

Revenue and support 

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and 
based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in 
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are recorded 
when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency. 

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that is, in 
substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as net assets 
with donor restrictions support if they are received with donor stipulations. Contributions and 
grants that are made to support the School’s current year activities are recorded as net assets 
without donor restrictions. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their 
estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

Marketing and Recruitment 

Marketing and recruitment costs are expensed as incurred for staff and student recruitment. 
Marketing and recruitment expense for the period from December 13, 2016 (inception) to 
June 30, 2019 $97,235. 
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OnTECH Charter High School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Functional Expense Allocation 

The majority of expenses can generally be directly identified with the program or supporting 
service to which they relate and are charged accordingly. Other expenses by function have 
been allocated among program and supporting services classifications on the basis of periodic 
time and expense studies and other basis as determined by management of the School to be 
appropriate. 

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes 

The School recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely 
than not to be sustained. Management has determined that the School had no uncertain tax 
positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. All Forms 990 filed by 
the School are subject to examination. 

Deferred Rent 

The School records its rent in accordance with U.S. GAAP guidance whereby all rental 
payments, including fixed rent increases, are recognized on a straight-line basis as an offset to 
rent expense. The difference between the straight-line rent expense and the required lease 
payments, as well as any unamortized lease incentives, is reflected in deferred rent in the 
accompanying statements of financial position. 

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management 

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the 
financial statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, 
which date is October 21, 2019. 

3. Grants and Contracts Receivable 

Grants and contracts receivable consist of federal, state, and city entitlements and grants. The 
School expects to collect these receivables within one year and has not provided an allowance 
for doubtful accounts. 

4. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30, 2019: 

Furniture and fixtures $ 256,746 
Computers and equipment 212,912 
Leasehold improvements 50,468 

520,126 
Accumulated depreciation 

and amortization (37,592) 

$ 482,534 

9 



            

  

OnTECH Charter High School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

5. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use within one year of the statement of financial position date, are comprised of 
the following at June 30, 2019: 

Financial assets at year end:

 Cash $ 116,149 
Grants and contracts receivable 693,413 

$ 809,562 

As part of the School’s liquidity management plan, the status of grants and contracts receivable 
is monitored regularly and any excess cash is held in money market accounts and other liquid 
instruments until it is required for operational use. 

6. Concentration of Credit Risk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit and market 
risk consist principally of cash on deposit with financial institutions, which from time to time may 
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) limit. The School does not believe 
that a significant risk of loss due to the failure of a financial institution presently exists. As of 
June 30, 2019, cash maintained did not exceed FDIC limits. 

7. Concentration of Revenue and Support 

The School receives a substantial portion of its revenue and support from the Syracuse City 
School district and four other nearby school districts. For the period from December 13, 2016 
(inception) to June 30, 2019, the School received approximately 57% of its total revenue and 
support from these school districts. If the charter school laws were modified, reducing or 
eliminating these revenues, the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected. 

8. Commitment 

On July 8, 2018, the School signed a lease agreement with Building Hope Herkimer Street, Inc. 
to lease office and classroom space under a non-cancelable lease expiring June 30, 2038 and 
paid a security deposit in the amount of $25,000. The School moved into this space on 
September 1, 2018. The school has an option of two five year extensions. The School has the 
option to purchase the building during the third and fifth year of the lease at 105% of the 
landlord’s cost in the amount of $2,805,290. If the acquisition is not closed during the third and 
fifth year of the lease the purchase price will increase starting the sixth year of the lease by 1% 
annually until the tenth year. After the tenth year of the lease the option to purchase the 
building automatically terminates. The lease requires the School to maintain two financial 
covenants which the School satisfied at June 30, 2019. 
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OnTECH Charter High School 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

8. Commitment (continued) 

The future minimum lease payments under this lease is as follows for the years ending          
June 30: 

2020 $ 174,258 
2021 275,205 
2022 290,909 
2023 304,935 
2024 332,988 
Thereafter 7,306,781 

$ 8,685,076 

Rent expense is recognized on the straight-line basis. The differences between cash 
payments under the lease agreement and the straight-line rent have been recognized as 
deferred rent in the accompanying statements of financial position from inception of the 
lease. The difference between rent cash payments and straight-line rent recorded in the 
statements of financial position amounted to $390,559 at June 30, 2019. 

Facility expense for the period from December 13, 2016 (inception) to June 30, 2019 was 
$448,351. 

9. Contingency 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits might 
result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement.  Management is of the opinion 
that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying 
financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying 
financial statements for such potential claims. 

***** 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With 

Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Board of Trustees 
OnTECH Charter High School 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of OnTECH Charter High School (the “School”), which comprise the statement of 
financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional 
expenses, and cash flows for period from December 13, 2016 (inception) to June 30, 2019, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 
21, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I Tel: 914 381 8900 I Fax: 914 381 8910 I www pkfod com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or 
liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms  



Board of Trustees 
OnTECH Charter High School 
Page 2 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards and is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as 
2019-001. 

The School’s Response to the Finding 

The School’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and responses. The School’s response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the School’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Harrison, New York 
October 21, 2019 



 

Ontech Charter High School 

Schedule of Findings and Responses 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Section I - Compliance Findings 

2019-001- Escrow Account for Dissolution 

Criteria 
The School should comply with all requirements of its charter agreement. 

Condition 
Under the provisions of its charter, the School is required to establish an escrow account of no 
less than $75,000 to pay for legal and audit expenses that would be associated with a 
dissolution should it occur. The School may provide for the full amount, in its first-year budget, 
or provide for a minimum of $25,000 per year for the first three years of its charter term. Though 
the School had not established a separate escrow account as of June 30, 2019, we note that it 
had provided a separate line item for escrow in its monthly financials and has subsequently 
established a separate account. 

Cause 
This was an oversight by management during the first year of operations. Management was 
aware of the need to have a separate escrow account and had taken steps in its monthly 
financials to identify a line item for that account. 

Effect 
The School is not in compliance with its charter agreement and its financial policies and 
procedures manual. 

Recommendation 
In an effort to ensure that the School is in compliance with the provisions of its charter, we 
recommend that the School establish a separate dissolution account and fund the account with 
the minimum of $25,000 to be in compliance with its charter agreement. 

Views of Responsible Officials
See management corrective action plan in Exhibit A. 
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OnTECH Charter High School 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 
Contributions and other receivables 

Other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Building and Equipment, net 
Restricted Cash 
Security Deposits 

Other Non-Current Assets 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 
 

TOTAL ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

2019 

116,149 
693,413 

-
19,706 

-
-

829,268 

482,534 
-

25,000 

-
507,534 

1,336,802 

$ 

$ 

2018 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll, payroll taxes and benefits 
Current Portion of Loan Payable 
Due to Related Parties 
Refundable Advances 
Deferred Revenue 

Other Current Liabilities 

TOTAL CURRENT 
 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Loan Payable; Due in More than One Year 
Deferred Rent 
Due to Related Party 

Other Long-Term Liabilities 

TOTAL LONG-TERM 
 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

$ 

$ 

429,367 
-
-
-

44,758 
-

274,095 

748,220 

-
116,464 

-
-

116,464 

864,684 

$ 

$ 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-



 

 
 

   

       

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 

Permanently restricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

$ 472,118 
-
-

472,118 

$ -
-
-
-

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 1,336,802 -



     
   

     

 
        
       
      

 
   
  
   
   

 
 
 

 
  

  

 

       

     
   

  
 

 
   

       

               
 

     

         
   

OnTECH Charter High School 
Statement of Activities 

as of June 30 

Unrestricted 

2019 
Temporarily 
Restricted 

Total 
2018 

Total 

OPERATING REVENUE 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - Reg. Ed 
State and Local Per Pupil Revenue - SPED 
State and Local Per Pupil Facilities Revenue 
Federal Grants 
State and City Grants 
Other Operating Income 

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 

$ 1,148,097 
-
-

849,688 
-
-
-

1,997,785 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 1,148,097 
-
-

849,688 
-
-
-

1,997,785 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

EXPENSES 
Program Services 

Regular Education 
Special Education 

Other Programs 

Total Program Services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

$ 1,068,249 
320,409 

-
1,388,658 

155,009 

-
1,543,667 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 1,068,249 
320,409 

-
1,388,658 

155,009 

-
1,543,667 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS 454,118 - 454,118 -

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Interest and Other Income 
Contributions and Grants 
Fundraising Support 
Investments 
Donated Services 

Other Support and Revenue 

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 

$ -
18,000 

-
-
-
-

18,000 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ -
18,000 

-
-
-
-

18,000 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-

Net Assets Released from Restrictions / Loss on Disposal 
  

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 

$ -

472,118 

$ -

-

$ -

472,118 

$ -

-

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

$ -
-

$ -
-

$ -
-

$ -
-



         NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 472,118 $ - $ 472,118 $ -



     
     

     

       
    

    
 

   

 
  

 
 

 
 
 

   
 

 
 

         

       
  

         

       
    

         

             
    

             

OnTECH Charter High School 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30 

2019 2018 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Revenues from School Districts 

$ 472,118 
-

$ -
-

Accounts Receivable - -
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciation 
Grants Receivable 
Due from NYS 

37,592 
(693,413) 

-

-
-
-

Grant revenues - -
Prepaid Expenses 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Expenses 
Accrued Liabilities 

(19,706) 
429,367 

-
-

-
-
-
-

Contributions and fund-raising activities 
Miscellaneous sources 

-
-

-
-

Deferred Revenue 
Interest payments 
Other 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 

390,559 
-

(25,000) 
44,758 

636,275 $ 

-
-
-
-
-

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment 
Other 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

$ 

$ 

(520,126) 
-

(520,126) 

$ 

$ 

-
-
-

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt 
Other 

$ 
-
-

$ 
-
-

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ - $ -

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
Cash at beginning of year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

$ 

$ 

116,149 

-
116,149 

$ 

$ 

-
-
-



     
     

     

   
 

 
         

  
 

 
   

    

  
 

   
    

 
     
  

  
  

 
   

  
 

 

 

OnTECH Charter High School 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

as of June 30 

Personnel Services Costs 
Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 

Total Salaries and Staff 
Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes 
Retirement 
Management Company Fees 
Legal Service 
Accounting / Audit Services 

Other Purchased / Professional / 
Consulting Services 
Building and Land Rent / Lease 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Supplies / Materials 
Equipment / Furnishings 
Staff Development 
Marketing / Recruitment 
Technology 
Food Service 
Student Services 
Office Expense 
Depreciation 

OTHER 

No. of 
Positions 

5.00 
21.00 

2.00 
28.00 

Regular 
Education 

$ 
84,673 

201,895 
18,563 

305,131 
48,232 

-
-
-
-

166,823 

311,409 
24,879 

5,523 
25,972 
32,375 
17,765 

5,674 
67,536 
19,617 

-
2,347 
8,856 

26,110 

-

Program Services 
Special Other 

Education Education 
$ $ 

12,181 -
79,653 -

3,703 -
95,537 -

5,134 -
- -
- -
- -
- -

52,083 -

97,503 -
7,790 -
1,729 -
8,132 -
6,459 -
5,562 -
1,776 -

21,146 -
6,142 -

- -
468 -

2,773 -
8,175 -

- -

$ 

Total 

96,854 
281,548 

22,266 
400,668 

53,366 
-
-
-
-

218,906 

408,912 
32,669 

7,252 
34,104 
38,834 
23,327 

7,450 
88,682 
25,759 

-
2,815 

11,629 
34,285 

-

2019 
Supporting Services 

Fundraising Management 
and General 

$ $ $ 
- 38,644 
- -
- -
- 38,644 
- 3,719 
- -
- -
- 8,174 
- 18,500 

- 20,960 

- 39,439 
- 3,151 
- 699 
- 3,289 
- -
- 2,250 
- 719 
- 8,553 
- 2,484 
- -
- -
- 1,121 
- 3,307 

- -

Total 

38,644 
-
-

38,644 
3,719 

-
-

8,174 
18,500 

20,960 

39,439 
3,151 

699 
3,289 

-
2,250 

719 
8,553 
2,484 

-
-

1,121 
3,307 

-
Total Expenses $ 1,068,249 $ 320,409 $ - $ 1,388,658 $ - $ 155,009 $ 155,009 



  

2018

 Total 

$ 

$ 

135,498 
281,548 

22,266 
439,312 

57,085 
-
-

8,174 
18,500 

239,866 

448,351 
35,820 

7,951 
37,393 
38,834 
25,577 

8,169 
97,235 
28,243 

-
2,815 

12,750 
37,592 

-
1,543,667 

$ 

$ 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-



	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

Entry 5c Additional Financial Docs 
Created: 10/30/2019 • Last updated: 11/01/2019 

The additional items listed below should be uploaded if applicable. Please explain the reason(s) if the 

items are not included. Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school 
did not expend federal funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the corrective action 

plan will be submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the 

report); etc. 

Section Heading 

1. Management Letter 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118964165/8mMIunnVv3/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 

the Management Letter. 

2. Form 990 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118964165/FlNDqRIBTE/ 

Explanation for not uploading Form 8868 990 Extension Attached 

the Form 990. 

3. Federal Single Audit 

Note: A copy of the Federal Single Audit must be filed with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Please refer 

to OMB Uniform Guidelines for the federal filing requirements. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading n/a 

the Federal Single Audit. 

4. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure Report 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118964165/dQZm1h8CfC/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 

the procedure report. 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

5. Evidence of Required Escrow Account 

Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the 

escrow account per school is $100,000. 

(No response) 

Explanation for not uploading Highlighted in Corrective Action Plan 

the Escrow evidence. 

6. Corrective Action Plan 

A Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations, which must 

include: 

a. The person responsible 

b. The date action was taken, or will be taken 

c. Description of the action taken 

d. Evidence of implementation (if available) 

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/118964165/JDKdnGTC4H/ 

Explanation for not uploading (No response) 

the Corrective Action Plan. 

2 / 2 



Ontech Charter High School 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Communication of 
Internal Control Matters Identified in the Audit 

June 30, 2019 



  

 

 

The Board of Trustees 
Ontech Charter High School 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Ontech Charter High School (the 
“School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal control over financial 
reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such 
deficiencies have been identified. 

We consider the deficiency in the School’s internal control presented in Addendum A to this letter to be 
significant deficiency. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, audit committee, 
board of Trustees, state, and local awarding agencies, The State Education Department of the State 
University of New York, and others within the School, and is not intended to be and should not be used 
by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Harrison, New York 
October 21, 2019 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 I Tel: 914.381.8900 I Fax: 914.381.8910 I  www.pkfod.com 

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or 
liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 



 

Ontech Charter High School 

Addendum A 

Deficiency in Internal Control that We Consider to be a Significant Deficiency 

1. Escrow Account for Dissolution 

Under the provisions of its charter, the School is required to establish an escrow account of no 
less than $75,000 to pay for legal and audit expenses that would be associated with a 
dissolution should it occur. The School may provide for the full amount, in its first-year budget, 
or provide for a minimum of $25,000 per year for the first three years of its charter term. Though 
the School had not established a separate escrow account as of June 30, 2019, we note that it 
had provided a separate line item for escrow in its monthly financials and has subsequently 
established a separate account. 

In an effort to ensure that the School is in compliance with the provisions of its charter, we 
recommend that the School establish a separate dissolution account and fund the account with 
the minimum of $25,000 to be in compliance with its charter agreement. 

***** 













    
          

  

     

           

     
     
                

  

            
          

   

               
            

           
            

New York State Education Department 
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the 

Board of Regents 

2019-20 Budget & Cash Flow Template 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates 

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE 
2 Enter information into the GRAY cells 

3 
Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item 

4 

School district per-pupil tuition information is located on the State Aid website at 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate 
additional districts if necessary. 

5 

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 



   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

   
     

   
    
    
    
    

  

  
    

   
  

 
   

    

      

  
    

   
   

 
     

      
    

 
  

      

  

     
 

 
   

OnTech Charter High School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

Total Revenue 
Total Expenses 

Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

Total Paid Student Enrollment 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION 

2,045,929 588,901 
1,648,996 412,643 

396,933 176,257 
180 27 

- -

OTHER 

-
-
-

MANAGEMENT & FUNDRAISING GENERAL 

15,000 486,648 
- 432,122 

15,000 54,526 

TOTAL 

3,136,478 
2,493,761 

642,717 
-
-

PROGRAM SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

SUPPORT SERVICES 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

REVENUE 

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate 

Syracuse City School District $13,518.00 

School District 2 (Enter Name) 
School District 3 (Enter Name) 
School District 4 (Enter Name) 
School District 5 (Enter Name) 

1,776,265 170,327 

- -
- -
- -
- -

1,776,265 170,327 

-
-
-
-
-

- 486,648 

- -
- -
- -
- -

486,648 

2,433,240 

-
-
-
-

2,433,240 

Special Education Revenue 

Grants 

Stimulus 

Other 
Other State Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 

IDEA Special Needs 

Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 

Other 
Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 

Erate Reimbursement 
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, 
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 

Other Local Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

- 364,986 

- -
- -

170,000 30,000 

1,946,265 565,313 

- 6,000 

61,645 10,878 

5,683 1,003 

- -

- -
- -
- -

67,328 17,881 

- -
32,336 5,706 

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

32,336 5,706 

2,045,929 588,901 

-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

- -

- -
- -
- -

486,648 

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

15,000 -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

15,000 

15,000 486,648 

364,986 

-
-

200,000 

2,998,226 

6,000 

72,523 

6,686 

-

-
-
-

85,209 

15,000 

38,043 

-
-
-
-
-

53,043 

3,136,478 

EXPENSES 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 1.00 68,000 12,000 - - - 80,000 

Instructional Management - - - - - - -
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 2.00 102,000 18,000 - - - 120,000 



    
   

 
  

  
  
  
 

 
 

  

 

  

 

   

   
 
   

  
    

   

 
   

  
 

    
 
  

    
     

  

 

   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

OnTech Charter High School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR SPECIAL MANAGEMENT & OTHER FUNDRAISINGEDUCATION EDUCATION GENERAL 

Total Revenue 2,045,929 588,901 - 15,000 486,648 
Total Expenses 1,648,996 412,643 - - 432,122 

Net Income 396,933 176,257 - 15,000 54,526 
Actual Student Enrollment 180 27 

Total Paid Student Enrollment - -

TOTAL 

3,136,478 
2,493,761 

642,717 
-
-

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR SPECIAL 
EDUCATION EDUCATION OTHER 

MANAGEMENT & 
FUNDRAISING GENERAL TOTAL 

CFO / Director of Finance - - - - - -
Operation / Business Manager 1.00 - - - - 50,000 

Administrative Staff 1.00 22,496 - - - 9,641 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 5 192,496 30,000 59,641 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Teachers - Regular 12.00 561,410 - - - -
Teachers - SPED 4.00 - 181,350 - - -
Substitute Teachers 3.00 57,694 10,181 - - -
Teaching Assistants 1.00 22,100 3,900 - - -
Specialty Teachers 1.00 38,250 6,750 - - -
Aides - - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors 2.00 68,000 12,000 - - -
Other - - - - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 23 747,454 214,181 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 

Nurse - - - - - -
Librarian - - - - - -
Custodian 1.00 - - - - 35,000 

Security 1.00 - - - - 40,000 

Other 2.00 - - - - 46,000 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 4 121,000 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 32 939,950 244,181 180,641 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

Payroll Taxes 84,773 22,022 - 16,292 

Fringe / Employee Benefits 13,892 3,609 - 2,670 

Retirement / Pension 23,903 6,210 - 4,594 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 122,568 31,841 23,555 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 1,062,518 276,022 204,197 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Accounting / Audit - - - - 20,000 

Legal - - - - 10,000 

Management Company Fee - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - - -
Payroll Services - - - - 6,000 

Special Ed Services - - - - -
Titlement Services (i e. Title I) - - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 74,120 13,080 - - 110,013 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 74,120 13,080 146,013 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

-
50,000 

32,137 

282,137 

561,410 

181,350 

67,875 

26,000 

45,000 

-
80,000 

-
961,635 

-
-

35,000 

40,000 

46,000 

121,000 

1,364,772 

123,087 

20,170 

34,707 

177,964 

1,542,737 

20,000 

10,000 

-
-
-

6,000 

-
-

197,213 

233,213 



 
     

    
  

   
  
 

   
 

 
   

 
 
 

   
   

 

  

   

     
   

  

    

  
     

 

 

        

   
    
    
    
    

   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

OnTech Charter High School 

Board Expenses - - - - 5,000 5,000 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 17,000 3,000 - - - 20,000 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials - - - - - -
Textbooks / Workbooks 42,500 7,500 - - - 50,000 

Supplies & Materials other - - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture 8,265 2,147 - - 1,588 12,000 

Telephone 2,521 655 - - 484 3,660 

Technology 13,361 3,471 - - 2,568 19,400 

Student Testing & Assessment 8,500 1,500 - - - 10,000 

Field Trips 25,500 4,500 - - - 30,000 

Transportation (student) 12,750 2,250 - - - 15,000 

Student Services - other 8,500 1,500 - - - 10,000 

Office Expense 13,774 3,578 - - 3,147 20,500 

Staff Development 14,463 3,757 - - 2,780 21,000 

Staff Recruitment 7,576 1,968 - - 1,456 11,000 

Student Recruitment / Marketing 41,323 10,735 - - 7,942 60,000 

School Meals / Lunch - - - - - -
Travel (Staff) 3,444 895 - - 662 5,000 

Fundraising - - - - - -
Other - - - - - -

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 219,477 47,456 25,627 292,560 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

Insurance 20,662 5,368 - - 3,971 30,000 

Janitorial 20,662 5,368 - - 3,971 30,000 

Building and Land Rent / Lease 135,508 35,202 - - 26,042 196,752 

Repairs & Maintenance 15,152 3,936 - - 2,912 22,000 

Equipment / Furniture - - - - - -
Security 3,444 895 - - 662 5,000 

Utilities 32,370 8,409 - - 6,221 47,000 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 227,797 59,177 43,778 330,752 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 30,648 7,962 - - 5,890 44,500 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY 34,436 8,946 - - 6,618 50,000 

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,648,996 412,643 432,122 2,493,761 

NET INCOME 396,933 176,257 - 15,000 54,526 642,717 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 
REGULAR 

EDUCATION 
SPECIAL 

EDUCATION 
TOTAL 

ENROLLED 

Syracuse City School District 180 27 207 

School District 2 (Enter Name) -
School District 3 (Enter Name) -
School District 4 (Enter Name) -
School District 5 (Enter Name) -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 2,045,929 588,901 - 15,000 486,648 3,136,478 
Total Expenses 1,648,996 412,643 - - 432,122 2,493,761 

Net Income 396,933 176,257 - 15,000 54,526 642,717 
Actual Student Enrollment 180 27 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

  

  

   
   

      
                        

 

 
 

 
  

   

  

 

OnTech Charter High School 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 180 27 207 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 11,366 21,811 -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 9,161 15,283 -

PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2019-2020 

July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 
Please Note  The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10. 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

OTHER FUNDRAISING 
MANAGEMENT & 

GENERAL 
TOTAL 

Total Revenue 2,045,929 588,901 - 15,000 486,648 3,136,478 
Total Expenses 1,648,996 412,643 - - 432,122 2,493,761 

Net Income 396,933 176,257 - 15,000 54,526 642,717 
Actual Student Enrollment 180 27 -

Total Paid Student Enrollment - - -

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING 

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL TOTAL 



 

        

         

  

      

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent) 

Head of School/Principal 

Head of Culture and Community/ Academic Dean 



 
 

 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 

Director Operations 

Office Administrator 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 



 

        

Assumptions 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable 



  

   

 

       
    

 

     
 

      
  

   

         
    
 

   
   

        
    

   
  

       
        

    

    
 

 
   

  
 

  
  

  
 
 

 

 	

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________ ________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School 
Education Corporation Trustee 

Trustee Name: 

Ellen Eagen 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

OnTECH Charter High 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 

Board President 
2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 

____Yes ____Nox 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 

x____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in
transaction and 
relationship to
yourself 

P lease 	wNone  r i t e 	 “None”  	 i f 	 app l iNone  cab le . 	  Do  	 no t 	 l eave  None  	 t h i s  	 s pace  	 b lank .  None  



   
    

         
       

      
            

     
      
        

      
 

 
  

                
               

    

   

    

  

   

    

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 

    

 
 

  
  

    

 
 
  
 

 	

  

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization
conducting
business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate
value of the 
business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or
immediate family member 
of household holding an 
interest in the organization
conducting business with
the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 
Conflict of 
Interest 

N o n e  

P lease 	wr i
N o n e  

t e 	 “None”  	 i
N o n e  

f 	 app l i cab le . 	  
N o n e  

Do  	 no t 	 l eave  	 t h i s  	 s pace  
N o n e  

	 b lank .  

08/01/2019 
Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such  may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone:  

Business Address:  

E-mail Address: _ __________________ 

Home Telephone: ___________________ 

Home Address: _  















        
    

 
   
  

 
 
 

       
    

 
   

  
 
      

  
 

        
   

 
    

 
  

           
     
  

 
    

    
 

         
    

   
   

        
         

     
 

    
 

 
   

  
 

  
  

  
 
 

 
    

 	

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________ ________________________________ 

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
Education Corporation Trustee 

Trustee Name: 
William E. Sanford 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

OnTECH Charter High School 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 
Trustee 

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes __x__No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes _x___No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in
transaction and 
relationship to
yourself 

None 
P lease 	w

None 
r i t e 	 “None”  	 i f 	 app l i

None 
cab le . 	  Do  	 no t 	 l eave  

None 
	 t h i s  	 s pace  	 b lank .  



    
    

         
        

      
             

      
       
         

       
  

 

 
 

 
  

 
                
               

    
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

  
 

    

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 

    

 
 

  
  

    

 
 
  
 

 
 

 
 

   

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization
conducting
business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate
value of the 
business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or
immediate family member 
of household holding an 
interest in the organization
conducting business with
the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 
Conflict of 
Interest 

None 
None None None None 

Signature 
 7/31/2019  

Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such  may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: N/A  

Business Address: N/A  

E-mail Address: _____________________ 

Home Telephone ____________________ 

Home Address: _  



        
    

 
   

 
   

 
 

       
    

 
     

 
      

  
 

        
   

 
    

 
  

           
     
  

 
    

    
 

         
    

   
   

        
         

     
 

    
 

 
   

  
 

  
  

  
 
 

 
     

 	

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Charter School
Education Corporation Trustee 

Trustee Name: 

_Eskedar Getahun ______________________________________________ 

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (for an unmerged school, this is 
the Charter School Name): 

___OnTECH Charter High School___________________________________ 

1. List all positions held on the education corporation board (e.g., president, treasurer, 
parent representative). 
Trustee 

2. Is the trustee an employee of any school operated by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes _x___No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Is the trustee an employee or agent of the management company or institutional 
partner of the charter school(s) governed by the Education Corporation? 
____Yes __x__No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

4. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that you or 
any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in your house 
have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) governed by the Education 
Corporation during the time you have served on the board, and in the six-month period 
prior to such service. If there has been no such financial interest or transaction, write 
None. Please note that if you answered Yes to Questions 2-4 above, you need not 
disclose again your employment status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of Financial 
Interest/Transaction 

Steps taken to avoid 
a conflict of interest, 
(e.g., did not vote, 
did not participate in 

discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in
transaction and 
relationship to
yourself 

None 
P lease 	w

None 
r i t e 	 “None”  	 i f 	 app l i

None 
cab le . 	  Do  	 no t 	 l eave  

None 
	 t h i s  	 s pace  	 b lank .  



    
    

         
        

      
             

      
       
         

       
  

 

 
 

 
  

 
                
               

    
 

   
 

    
 

   
 

  
 

    

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 

    

 
 

  
  

    

 
 
  
 

 
 

 
 

   

5. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership, 
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business 
or real estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) governed by the Education Corporation and in which 
such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate 
family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a financial interest or other 
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization 
formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are doing business with the school(s) 
through a management or services agreement, please identify only the name of the 
organization, your position in the organization, and the relationship between such 
organization and the school(s). If there was no financial interest, write None. 

Organization
conducting
business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 
conducted 

Approximate
value of the 
business 
conducted 

Name of Trustee and/or
immediate family member 
of household holding an 
interest in the organization
conducting business with
the school(s) and the 
nature of the interest 

Steps Taken 
to Avoid 
Conflict of 
Interest 

None None None None None 

Signature 
 08/1/2019  

Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and as such  may be made available to 
members of the public upon request under the Freedom of Information Law. Personal contact information 
provided below will be redacted. 

Business Telephone: N/A  

Business Address: N/A  

E-mail Address: ______ 

Home Telephone ________ 

Home Address:  



	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

Entry 8 BOT Table 
Created: 07/17/2019 • Last updated: 11/02/2019 

1. SUNY AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all VOTING and NON VOTING trustees. 

1 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

Ellen 
Eagen

Steve 
Kimatian 

John 
Stegema 
n 

Eskedar 
Getahun 

Victoria 
Giarratan 
o 

Bill 
Sanford 

Position 
on the 
Board 

Chair 

Secretary 

Vice 
Chair 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Trustee/M
ember 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

Committ 
ee of the 
Whole 

Committ 
ee of the 
Whole 

Committ 
ee of the 
Whole 

Committ 
ee of the 
Whole 

Committ 
ee of the 
Whole 

Committ 
ee of the 
Whole 

Voting
Member 
Per By
Laws 
(Y/N) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Number 
of Terms 
Served 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

07/01/20
18 

07/01/20
19 

07/01/20
18 

07/01/20
19 

7/01/201
8 

7/01/201
8 

End Date 
of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

06/30/20
21 

06/30/20
22 

07/28/20
19 

06/30/20
21 

07/01/20
20 

06/01/20
19 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018 19 

12 

12 

10 

5 or less 

5 or less 

7 

2 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

1a. Are there more than 9 No 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018 19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018 19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018 19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

3. Number of Board meetings 

held during 2018-19 

4. Number of Board meetings 

scheduled for 2019-20 

Thank you. 

5 

0 

1 

6 (min 5) 

12 

12 

3 / 3 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	

Entry 9 - Board Meeting Minutes 
Created: 08/01/2019 • Last updated: 11/01/2019 

Instructions for submitting minutes of the BOT monthly meetings 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must either provide a link to a complete set of 
minutes that are posted on the charter school website, or upload a complete set of board meeting 

minutes from July 2018 June 2019, which should match the number of meetings held during the 2018 19 

school year. 

ONTECH CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

Are all monthly BOT meeting 

minutes posted, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during 2018-19 school year, 
on the charter school's website? 

Yes 

A. Provide if posted on the 

charter school's website a URL 

http://www.ontechcharter.com/board of trustees/ 

link to the Monthly Board 

Meeting Minutes, which should 

match the number of meetings 

held during the 2018-19 school 
year. 

1 / 1 



 
 

 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

            
 

OnTECH Charter High School 
Minutes for July 31, 2018

 Board Meeting 

The Meeting was held at: Hazard Library, 1620 W. Genesee Street., Syracuse, NY 13203 

Present: 
Ellen Eagen, Founder & President 
Eskedar Getahun, Trustee – via telepresence 
Victoria Giarratano, Trustee - excused 
Stephen Kimatian, Secretary/ Treasurer 
Bill Sanford, Trustee 
John Stegeman, Trustee 
Francis Coudriet, Administrator 

1. WELCOME 
Chairperson of the meeting, John Stegeman, called the meeting to order at 5:40 pm. He asked 
the Trustees to introduce themselves, as well as those members of the community in 
attendance. Keil White introduced himself as coordinator of facilities and Ms. Mary Habbib 
introduced herself as a member of the finance department of the city school district. 

2. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES 
Prior to the meeting, minutes of the June 30, 2018 meeting had been distributed to the Trustees. 
Additional copies were made available at the meeting. The Chair asked for any additions, 
corrections or modifications. There being none, they were accepted as presented. 

3. FINANCIAL REPORT 
The Chairperson called upon the Treasurer to give the financial report. Trustee Kimatian 
stated there were three items to cover. First was the expenses and revenue of the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2018. He discussed the P&L and balance sheet statements for the fiscal year. 
The second was the budget for the coming year. He reported that the budget was on target 
from the previous month and its next iteration would be when enrollment numbers were firm. 
The third item he said was a matter of the loans that Trustee Eagen had made to the school. 
There were two promissory notes approved by the Board in prior meetings for a possible total 
of $40,000 of loans. Of that, the school drew down $30,000, which Trustee Kimatian said was 
outstanding and past due as of June 30, 2018. He reported that Trustee Eagen was willing to 
extend the time for repayment of the $30,000 until December 31, 2018. Trustee Eagen said 

312 SEDGWICK DRIVE | SYRACUSE, NY 13203 | (315) 256-2461 | WWW.ONTECHCHARTER.COM 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

            
 

this was at no interest. Trustee Kimatian asked for a motion to approve the extension. Trustee 
Sanford made a motion for the Board to approve the extension of the repayment of $30,000 on 
these two promissory note until December 31, 2018. The motion was seconded by Trustee 
Stegeman. There being no further discussion, there was a call for the vote and it was passed 
unanimously. Trustee Kimatian reported that given the need to insure cash flow to pay for 
ongoing expenses as the school got started, Trustee Eagen was willing to make another loan of 
up to $30,000 should the need be warranted. In this instance she requested that a fair interest 
be paid on the promissory note for any monies outstanding. Trustee Kimatian asked for a 
motion to approve such additional loan with fair interest to be owed. Trustee Stegeman moved 
to approve acceptance of the additional loan amount with fair interest, which was seconded by 
Trustee Sanford. There being no further discussion, the motion was voted upon and carried 
unanimously. It was agreed that the Treasurer would report back after researching prevailing 
rates on a fair interest would be. 

4. FACILITIES/ OPERATIONS 
The Chairman then called upon Trustee Kimatian to give the facilities report. Trustee 
Kimatian stated that the renovations were on schedule. Abatement work was in progress, 
rooms were being painted and floors sanded. The lavatories were being prepped for new 
fixtures and new floor covering was scheduled for the basement and first floor. The fire alarm 
systems were being installed and so far all codes were being met. Trustee Stegeman inquired 
whether any work was going on in the rectory. 
Trustee Kimatian then reported that the Internet and IT infrastructure was scheduled for 
installation and would be completed prior to the end of school. 

5. RECRUITMENT & MARKETING 
Student recruitment has been progressing very well. We have used a multimedia approach, but 
the strongest element of recruitment seems to be word of mouth. Parents who have 
investigated the school and met with the recruiting committee have come away very enthused 
for their children. 

6. FACULTY / STAFFING 
The Chairman then called on Trustee Eagen to report on faculty recruitment. Trustee Eagen 
said she was glad to report that we have many outstanding applicants to select from and that the 
hiring committee was at work reviewing applications and interviewing. Trustee Sanford 
remarked that it sounded like good progress was being made. Chairman Stegeman thanked all 
those who were collaborating to make the launch successful. Trustee Eagen showed the Board 
an organization chart of how she would like to proceed. She explained that since we had not 
found a head of school, she would operate in that position for an interim period and 
uncompensated. She would oversee a tripartite structure of a Head of Academics, a Head of 
Operations and Head of Students/Culture as the administrative tier. She spoke about Mr. Kiel 
White sitting in the position of Head of Operations, for the interim, and Mr. Joshua Schneider 
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sitting in the position of Head of Academics. The Board reviewed their expertise. Trustee Eagen 
said the School would be posting for the position of Head of Students/Culture. Trustee Eagen 
showed the Board the configuration of the organization chart and asked for a resolution 
approving the personnel configuration. After discussion by the Board, Trustee Sanford moved 
a resolution be adopted approving the personnel configuration presented. The motion was 
seconded by Trustee Kimatian and carried unanimously. 

7. ACADEMIC PROGRAMMING
 The Chairman called upon teacher Morgan Boerman to present an academic program that had 
been done with the newly enrolled students. The program revolved about defining a food desert 
and how that interplayed in a community and affected people in a real-world application. She 
said it brought scientific thinking to projects and showed how agriculture is personal to health. 
The approach used Project Based Learning, team dynamics, and collaboration to achieve the 
learning goals. Trustee Eagen then reported on the school calendar as it progressed over the 
school year. She said teachers were very excited about the calendar planning and she 
envisioned it would be successful. Notwithstanding that, she said that we would always be open 
to a new iteration that was an improvement. 

8. OPERATIONS 
Trustee Eagen reported that the District was invoiced for students to date. She said that the 
plans for the food service were being worked out and that one alternative was to be an agency of 
the District where the school would then be in the position of heating and serving. 
Transportation of students was also being worked on by Mr. White. Chairman Stegeman stated 
in conclusion that the reports at the meeting this evening showed outstanding accomplishments 
toward launching the school. 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
While there was no new business, there was anticipated a scheduled executive session, however, 
the meeting facilities were closing and it was unanimously agreed that such executive session 
would be held at another time. A motion was made by Trustee Sanford to adjourn, seconded by 
Trustee Kimatian and unanimously carried. 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
Minutes for August 29, 2018 Board Meeting 

Place: Administrative Offices of OnTECH Charter High School, 810 Willis Avenue, Syracuse, NY 
13204 

Present: 
Ellen Eagen, Founder & President 
Victoria Giarratano, Trustee 
Bill Sanford, Trustee – excused 
Stephen Kimatian, Secretary/Treasurer 
John Stegeman, Trustee/ Chairperson 
Eskedar Getahun, Trustee – excused 
Francis Coudriet, Administrator 

1. WELCOME 
Chairperson of the meeting, John Stegeman, called the meeting to order at 5:40 PM. He 
welcomed the community representatives who were in attendance and invited them to ask 
questions at the end of the business meeting. He then asked the Trustees to introduce 
themselves. 

2. FACULTY/ STAFFING - INTRODUCTIONS 
After that the Chairperson gave the floor to the Founder & President Ellen Eagen. Trustee 
Eagen welcomed everyone and said this was a momentous occasion to be in the school and 
getting ready for the first class. She thanked everyone for their support and expressed her 
great satisfaction in bringing the mission of OnTECH to the Syracuse community. She then 
spoke about the faculty present and how they had marshalled their resources over the last 
months to create a unique curriculum for the students. She then invited each of the faculty 
members to introduce themselves and speak about their personal perspective on how they 
viewed the launch of OnTECH. 

3. FACILITIES/ OPERATIONS 
The Chairperson then asked Trustee Kimatian to speak about the status of the renovations. 
Trustee Kimatian reported that the renovations required to open the school were close to 
completion. The school only planned to use the first floor and the basement while renovations 
were completed on the second floor.  Top priority was meeting the building code requirements 
of the city and state and fire alarm security required by the city of Syracuse Fire Department. 
So far, he said, the school has passed all its inspections. The community members in 
attendance and the board were invited to tour the facility. 

4. ACADEMIC PROGRAMMING 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
Trustee Eagen then asked the Head of Academics, Mr. Josh Schneider, to speak about the 
curriculum and academic programming. He presented the work the faculty had done over 
summer at numerous meetings in discussing the best programming approach, as well as their 
invitation to community members and potential students to give input on the curriculum. He 
said the faculty was looking forward to opening day with great enthusiasm. 

5. OPERATIONS 
The Chairperson then called upon Trustee Eagen to report on operations. She explained that 
the the District had been very helpful in providing transportation, even though it needed to be 
ingested into the system after much of the routing had been already done for the city students. 
She said that the city would use yellow buses to transport the students instead of Centro, since 
it was easier to do at this point. The routes for students were being worked out as the 
enrollment increased. She cautioned that the first couple of weeks are generally rocky as the 
bus drivers and the students get acclimated to the new pattern of the routes. 
Trustee Eagen then spoke to the organizational structure. 
She then handed out an org chart that showed the three heads of the key operational 
departments - Facilities Operations, Academic Instruction and Culture & Students. The Support 
services department including HR, Finance, Development and Accountability/Data Services 
would provide expertise to each of these departments. As such, the three main departments 
would operate as a triumvirate of responsibility, each having a domain and each accountable 
for the department charged. This was the same structure as represented in the initial school 
design. In some detail she then explained how she would interact with these heads and oversee 
the head of school function until a search was completed to fill that position.  Trustee Eagen 
referred to other high performing charter schools having a similar structure that apparently 
functioned excellently.  She then asked for approval of the Board of the structure presented.  A 
motion was made by Trustee Stegeman and seconded by Trustee Kimatian to approve the 
structure as presented. Further discussion ensued with the questions by the Trustees on the 
specific functions of the Head of School Culture and in what ways that individual would interact 
with the students. Trustee Stegeman wanted to know what would happen if a Head of Culture 
was not found.  Trustee Eagen said there were several candidates for the position and she felt 
confident that even if a candidate did not perform as anticipated there were several other 
candidates who were ostensibly qualified.  After further discussion of support services 
concerning HR, the motion was called.  Upon vote a resolution approving the org chart 
proposed was unanimously approved. 

6. FINANCES 
The Chairperson then called upon Trustee Kimatian to give the financial report. Trustee 
Kimatian said the expenses were in line with the budget, but that given that we were a new 
school, we would adjust a working budget to the actual student body count as it settled after 
the first three weeks. He said that the school has received the balance of CSP monies of 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
approximately $20,000 and that there was the anticipated payment from the city school district 
expected within two weeks.  

7. APPROVAL OF AUGUST MINUTES 
The Chairperson then ask for a vote approving the August 29, 2018 meeting minutes. On 

motion by Trustee Kimatian, seconded by Trustee Eagen, a motion to approve the minutes was 
carried unanimously.  

8. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no new business or other matters to discuss, the Chairperson asked for a motion to 
adjourn the meeting.  After the question was called, on motion by Trustee Giarratano, 
seconded by Trustee Kimatian, the board voted unanimously to adjourn the meeting. 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
Minutes for September 19, 2018 Board Meeting 

Place: Administrative Offices of OnTECH Charter High School, 810 Willis Avenue, Syracuse, NY 
13204 

Present: 
Ellen Eagen, Founder & President 
Victoria Giarratano, Trustee 
Bill Sanford, Trustee 
Stephen Kimatian, Secretary/Treasurer 
John Stegeman, Trustee/ Chairperson 
Eskedar Getahun, via telepresence 
Francis Coudriet, Administrator 

1. WELCOME 
Chairperson of the meeting, John Stegeman, called the meeting to order at 5:50 PM. He first 
welcomed David Frank, Director of the Charter School Office for the New York State Education 
Department, who was in attendance at the meeting.  Prior to the meeting Mr. Frank had an 
opportunity to tour the school.  Mr. Frank said he was glad to be able to attend.  The 
Chairperson then asked the Trustees to introduce themselves with a short bio of their 
backgrounds. Given Mr. Frank was intending on returning to Albany this evening, the 
Chairperson offered to give him the floor for any comments. 

Mr. Frank said he was glad to have this opportunity to speak with the Trustees, particularly 
since he did need to return to Albany. Mr. Frank then addressed the Trustees on a number of 
matters.  Among them were the following. 

1. He recognized the uniqueness of OnTECH in pursuing the agricultural connections. He 
recognized this fit with the Upstate economy and felt it provided a strong relationship into that 
industry for students. He said there were 356 charter schools in New York States, serving a 
variety of student and community needs. Some, he said were similar, such as Vertus in 
Rochester and New Dawn in Brooklyn, New York. 
2. Mr. Frank said he believed in the autonomy of charters to chart their own course, to develop 
their programming in the best way they could foresee and to deliver instruction in a manner 
they felt connected best with the students in their region and their school. At the same time, 
he said, this autonomy came with the responsibility to produce results and be accountable to 
the Charter School Office in delivering the expectations required of a successful charter. He 
underscored that the Charter School Office was there to help the schools, provide guidance and 
answer any questions that might arise. He stressed that the Charter School Office would also be 
evaluating the schools on the set criteria and would make judgments in the best interest of the 
students and the mandate of the State with respect to charters. He said that Trustees should 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
clearly understand their role and obligation to produce results. Although it is not something 
that the Charter School Office wants to do, he said that he wanted to clearly communicate that 
a school that was not producing would be closed. 
3. He then spoke about the need for Board to be strong in its oversight.  He pointed out three 
major areas to be addressed: namely, Fiscal, Operational and Legal considerations. The Board 
must make tough decisions if the school is not headed in the right direction.  The Board needs 
to assess the data and results of the school’s curriculum and instruction and it if does not meet 
expectations, the Board must take action. 
4. An essential part of the Board’s work, Mr. Frank explained, is to assess the school leadership. 
A successful charter needs strong leadership and Great Boards go hand in hand with Great 
School Leaders. To be a great board is hard work, he said, but that is what is expected of the 
charter schools under his responsibility. 
5. Mr. Frank then spoke about how there is a great commonality among start-up charters. He 
said you should not be dissuaded if everything does not go as you predicted or as you want. 
That happens to every new charter. If you have a certain problem, you can probably bet that 
other charters had the same problem. It can be messy. It can require fixes. The important 
thing is to react to the issues. You can also learn from others he said.  The Charter School 
Office is always there to help. 
6. Mr. Frank pointed out how learning from what other charter have done can be helpful to 
OnTECH.  He said you are fortunate in that Ellen has a great understanding of the charter world 
and knows many individuals who can be reached out to for assistance. 
7. Mr. Frank then mentioned a number of charters which have had outstanding success in the 
different subject areas and different grade levels. 
8. He pointed out that professional development can be a key way to insure that your faculty 
stays up to date. As you might expect, pay scales can also be a key driver for hiring talented 
staff as well as retention. 
9. Exit interviews can also be very useful for identifying problems or catching issues before they 
become major problems. 
10.  Lastly, he said that he believed OnTECH has the potential for tremendous success.  The 
main thing is to keep your eye on the ball, on the important job of being a board and don’t be 
afraid to ask questions of the Charter School Office. With that, Mr. Frank said he would be 
leaving shortly and thanked everyone for their attention. 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
The Chairperson then ask for a vote approving the September, 2018 meeting minutes. There 
being no additions, modifications or corrections, a motion was made by Trustee Sanford, 
seconded by Trustee Stegeman, and carried unanimously.  

3. FACILITIES / OPERATIONS 
The Chairperson called upon Trustee Kimatian to give the facilities report. Trustee Kimatian 
reported that the issue of meeting the fire code was following a procedure whereby the plans 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
would first be given code approval from the city of Syracuse and the work would then be bid 
out and installation would be made. This would require at least six weeks to complete.  He said 
laying the tile on the second floor and in the hallways was underway. The rectory would be 
receiving a metal roof as that turned out to be the least costly way to address the aging roof. 
The Church alarm system was being installed and the additional requirements of egress from 
the basement was being addressed. Trustee Sanford asked when the rectory space would be 
available to use. It would probably be Christmas before that space could be used as it is the last 
of the three buildings to be brought up to code. 
Keil White, Director of Operations, spoke about the bus routes for transportation now being 
fixed with less issues for students getting to school. Trustee Eagen said it turned out that 
starting a day late actually turned out to be a positive, since the city schools started on that day 
as well and most parents did not object.  

4. ACADEMIC REPORT 
Josh Schneider, Academic Dean, was asked to give the report.  Mr. Schneider said that a main 
focus was on developing the culture of the school. He said that students are participating in 
defining their own culture. One programmatic theme was to view the learning of math and 
history through the lens of food, its availability, its quality, its value, as well as the history of 
usage for different people. Mr. Schneider explained that the mission was not to directly tell the 
students what they should learn, but rather have them uncover the facts and ask the questions 
that will get them the answers. He said we want the students to embrace the ownership and 
authorship of the lessons.  The goal is to have them embrace the culture of this new way of 
learning. Trustee Stegeman agreed that culture and learning should be tied together. Mr. 
Schneider stated that assessment of reading levels was key and steps were being taken to get a 
better understanding of each individual’s level. He said he would continue to update the Board 
on the progress. 
Mr. Frank asked what interventions are being put into place with respect to expectations of the 
student, e.g., he said, how are you using data. Mr. Schneider said he agreed that gathering data 
was a critical aspect of being able to address the needs of the individual students. He said that 
the teachers were in the process of identifying the best tests for assessing the levels. Right now, 
the administering through computer aided tests was being considered. 
Trustee Sanford asked whether the teachers had any issues with the facilities in getting their 
jobs done. Mr. Schneider said he felt that the teachers were able to accomplish what they 
wanted and that we benefited from having a small school at this point. 
Mr. White said that from his perspective the teachers appreciate that we are starting 
something new. They see progress in the facilities improving and they are on board. 
Trustee Sanford emphasized that communication between faculty administration was key. 
Trustee Eagen said our goal is to build a professional community that has a clear focus of 
moving forward and that is consistently iterating to improve results. 

5. PERSONNEL 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
Trustee Eagen reported that we had lost one teacher who felt OnTECH was not the best fit for 
her and left for personal reasons. Trustee Stegeman had a question on the when a Dean of 
Students and Culture would be hired.  Trustee Eagen said we had some excellent candidates 
and would be interviewing them over the next week.  She also said a new ELA teacher had been 
hired and would be starting after she provided the proper notice for her transition. 
Trustee Eagen also stated that the school had reviewed different medical and dental plans and 
had concluded that the Excellus health care and dental plans would be made available to 
employees. To offset some of the Employee cost the school would provide $200 per month 
toward health and $20 / month toward dental insurance premiums for those who elected to 
participate in the Excellus plans. Toward that end, a motion was made by Trustee Kimatian to 
adopt the Excellus plans and for the school to contribute $200/ month toward health care and 
$20/ month toward dental insurance premiums for eligible employees who participate in the 
plans. The motion was seconded by Trustee Stegeman and upon vote of the Board was 
unanimously carried. 

6. FINANCE 
Trustee Kimatian gave the Treasurer’s report. He said we were on budget at this time and had 
sufficient funds to pay the due bills. Computers were being received and imaged and are 
scheduled to be used by the classes in the first two weeks of October. Submission for the next 
invoicing of the district will be done on October 1st. We also anticipate receipt of the CSP funds 
within the next month. 

7. GOVERNANCE 
Trustee Eagen stated that the configuration of the management structure of the school would 
go forward as approved by the Board at previous meetings, namely a tripartite senior 
management tier composed of the Dean of Academics, Dean of Students & Culture and 
Director of Operations. This was an intentional structure at the outset to insure that the 
execution of the school mission stayed true to the founding vision. 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to discuss, the Chairperson said he would entertain a motion to 
dismiss. A motion was made by Trustee Eagen, seconded by Trustee Sanford, and unanimously 
carried by vote. 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
Minutes for November 21, 2018 Board Meeting 

Place: Administrative Offices OnTECH Charter High School, 810 Willis Ave, Syracuse, NY 13204 

Present: 
Ellen Eagen, Founder & President 
Victoria Giarratano, Excused 
Bill Sanford, Trustee 
Stephen Kimatian, Secretary/Treasurer 
John Stegeman, Trustee/ Chairperson 
Eskedar Getahun, via telepresence 
Francis Coudriet, Administrator 
Joshua Schneider, Head of Academics 
Keil White, Director of Operations/ Facilities 

1. WELCOME 
Chairperson of the meeting, John Stegeman, called the meeting to order at 5:45 PM. He 
welcomed everyone and said it was exciting to be in the school’s new home now closing in on 
the first half of the school year. 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
The Chairperson then ask for a vote approving the November 21, 2018 meeting minutes. 
Trustee Sanford moved, seconded by Trustee Stegeman to approve the minutes from 
November 21, 2018. There being no further additions, modifications, or corrections, the motion 
was carried unanimously.  

3. FACILITIES / OPERATIONS 
The Chairperson called upon Keil White, Director of Operations, to give the facilities report.  Mr. 
White stated that the new fire alarm system had been installed.  The only item left to secure 
the approval was to install the fire rescue windows. He stated that given the board’s approval 
of the snow plowing contract, he retained the services of Andy’s Property Maintenance. Work 
would continue to be done in the church to complete the fire alarm system and comply with 
code. He said the abatement work at the rectory had been completed. 

4. ACADEMICS REPORT 
The Chairperson called upon Joshua Schneider to present the Academics report.  Mr. Schneider 
said that the school was now fully staffed.  Physical Education Andrea Mortis has joined the 
faculty. He said that he now had more time to get into the classrooms and work with the 
teachers. STAR based assessments would be done of all students next week. This will give the 
teachers a much more accurate idea of the level of capabilities of each student which will 
enable more effective teaching to the needs of the individual students. Progress reports will be 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
going out for all students over the next two weeks. The school will also be hosting parent-
student open house in the first week in December.  
Trustee Eagen spoke about the Alternative to Violence Project. She said they are an 
international organization that has established credibility in presenting programs addressing 
violence in schools. They specifically address anger issues of teenagers.  They will be presenting 
a half day program in December for all students. She said that we need to continue to try 
different ways to reach the students, particularly those with behavior issues. Traditional 
approaches do not always work.  Trustee Eagen said that the optimum approach in dealing with 
students on issues was to have them have a stake in creating the outcomes. However, 
admittedly some students do not accept the responsibility for their actions. 

A discussion ensued concerning the best ways to reach students. The merits of the advisory 
period were reviewed in connection with the culture of the school. The extent to which 
consequences would be assigned to levels of behavior was also a part of the discussion. 
Trustee Sanford asked whether the curriculum needed to be re-examined with respect to the 
student body as it is now constituted. 

5. FINANCIAL REPORT 
The Chairperson called up Trustee Kimatian to give the financial report.  Trustee Kimatian said 
that the latest payment from the school district was received and that he expected the first 
20% of the CSP monies to be paid over before the month of November was over. With this, the 
school will have its accounts up to date including computers, furniture and work done in 
connection with cabling and creating the inter-connected IT network. 

6. PERSONNEL AND STAFFING 
Trustee Eagen informed the trustees that Chris Petrilli had been brought on to support security 
and student relationships. He will be working in conjunction with James Price, Dean of 
Students. 

7. GOVERNANCE 
The Chairperson called upon Trustee Eagen for this report. Trustee Eagen said that the plan 
remained the same to have a search for a head of school in the first quarter of the New Year. 
She also said that given the two Trustees who would no longer be able to serve on the Board, 
the Board would be looking to bring on new Trustees. Trustee Sanford said that he would be 
spending more time in Florida and out of town. He said that he would still be able to continue 
supporting the schools in areas of political and community relationships. At the end of this 
school year, Trustee Stegeman informed the board that he had accepted a new position with a 
west coast Independent school.  

8. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business the meeting was adjourned by unanimous vote of the Board. 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
Minutes for December 21, 2018 Board Meeting 

Place: Administrative Offices OnTECH Charter High School, 810 Willis Ave, Syracuse, NY 13204 

Present: 
Ellen Eagen, Founder & President 
Victoria Giarratano, Excused 
Bill Sanford, Trustee 
Stephen Kimatian, Secretary/Treasurer 
John Stegeman, Trustee/ Chairperson 
Eskedar Getahun, via telepresence 
Francis Coudriet, Administrator 
Joshua Schneider, Head of Academics 
Keil White, Director of Operations/ Facilities 

1. WELCOME 
John Stegeman, Chairperson for the meeting, called the meeting to order at 5:40 PM. He 
welcomed everyone and said the school would be on its first Holiday break before a New Year. 
He said it was an exciting time to be in the school’s new home and celebrating the holidays. 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
The Chairperson then ask for a vote approving the November 21, 2018 meeting minutes. 
Trustee Sanford moved, seconded by Trustee Stegeman to approve the minutes from 
November 21, 2018. There being no further additions, modifications, or corrections, the motion 
was carried unanimously.  

3. FACILITIES / OPERATIONS 
The Chairperson called upon Kiel White, Director of Operations, to give the facilities report.  Mr. 
White stated that several options had been considered with respect to the heating plant of the 
school.  The boiler was now 22 years old and was not performing reliably. An analysis of the 
BTU output showed that at temperatures below 10 degrees the boiler would may not be able 
to generate enough heat to keep the school at the necessary comfortable temperatures. The 
school’s choice was to replace the whole boiler for a cost of $50,000 or repair the section 
causing a problem, which was a cost of $16,000. Trustee Kimatian said that three quotes had 
been obtained. Of them, $16,000 was the least costly and two companies had similar quotes. 
The difference was that the company selected had been the company that had worked on the 
boiler for the last ten years and was most familiar with it. The repair should last for several 
years. After discussion, the Board voted. On motion by Trustee Sanford, seconded by Trustee 
Eagen, the Trustees unanimously approved to repair the boiler. Mr. White said that the plans 
were to accomplish the repair over the vacation holiday so as not to interrupt teaching days for 
students. 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
Mr. White further reported that the fire alarm system in the church was in the process of being 
completed. Trustee Sanford asked whether the costs were sustainable to which Treasurer 
Kimatian replied that they were. 

4. ACADEMICS REPORT 
The Chairperson called upon Joshua Schneider to present the Academics report.  Mr. Schneider 
said he was pleased to report that laptops for students were all in and the students were 
getting used to using them. Benchmark testing had been done using the STAR software 
program which has given good information on the various levels of competence. He said the 
availability of using laptops for instruction enabled access to online teaching tools such as Khan 
Academy. 
Mr. Schneider then informed the Trustees that report cards would be going out. In areas where 
there were incompletes, he said the students would be able to make good on that during the 
semester. Then ensued a discussion among the Trustees and Mr. Schneider on how that would 
be accomplished. 
Trustee Sanford asked what the correlation was between following the dress code and 
performance grade level. Though a study had not been done, a case could be made that those 
following the dress code had higher grade performance. 
Mr. Schneider then handed out an Academic Report listing the month’s accomplishments. 
Trustee Eagen reported on a trip to the Schein Student Center at Syracuse University by sixteen 
students who had earned the trip. The students saw an art show of painting of well known 
individuals and some not so well know, but all of whom had made significant contributions to 
society. For many students it was the first time on a university campus. 

5. FINANCIAL REPORT 
The Chairperson then called upon the Treasurer for the financial report.  Treasurer Kimatian 
reported that the first 20% of CSP monies had been received and that the school had submitted 
its December 1 enrollment invoice to the Syracuse City School District. He said that the bills 
were up to date, that the capital expenditure for the boiler repair had been allocated and that 
there was over a month of operating cash flow going forward. He said that the best use of the 
CSP monies was being considered.  

6. PERSONNEL & STAFFING 
The Chairperson asked Trustee Eagen to report on personnel and staffing.  Trustee Eagen stated 
that we needed to think about next year and the recruiting of students. She said that we 
continue to receive students on a weekly basis during the school year. She said that often a 
parent and a potential student might want to visit the school and tour the facility and see 
OnTECH in action. That‘s why it is important, she said, that we consistently show those 
interested in the school a caring, respectful and learning environment. She said that a strategy 
was being developed for a recruitment campaign. It also meant, she said, we would need to 
recruit additional teachers for the new added enrollment.  

312 SEDGWICK DRIVE | SYRACUSE, NY 13203 | (315) 256-2461 | 

WWW.ONTECHCHARTER.COM 



 
 

 

 

 

    

 

 

 

  
   

        
        

           
        

      
         

            
             

           
            

             
 

   
      

      

CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

7. GOVERNANCE 
The Chairperson recognized Trustee Eagen for the Governance report. Trustee Eagen 
referenced the need previously discussed to hire more teachers and staff for the impending 
student enrollment increase, but also added that consideration would also be given to a head 
of school search.  In addition, she and other Trustees were identifying individuals who could 
become Trustees, who would be complementary to the current Board and provide additional 
guidance and expertise. With that she yielded the floor to Trustee Sanford. 
Trustee Sanford said that over the next months he would be leaving the Board because he 
would be spending more time away from Syracuse. He said, even at that time, that he would 
still be available to be helpful where he could.  Trustee and Founder, Ellen Eagen, said she was 
sorry to hear that but thanked Bill for the excellent work he had contributed to OnTECH to date, 
which had been integral to the launch of the school, and for the continuing work he would do. 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, a motion was made by Trustee Sanford, seconded by Trustee 
Stegeman to adjourn the meeting and was approved by unanimous consent.  
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Minutes for January 30, 2018 Board Meeting 

Place: Administrative Offices OnTECH Charter High School, 810 Willis Ave, Syracuse, NY 13204 

Present: 
Ellen Eagen, Founder & President 
Victoria Giarratano, Excused 
Bill Sanford, Excused 
Stephen Kimatian, Secretary/Treasurer 
John Stegeman, Trustee/ Chairperson 
Eskedar Getahun 
Francis Coudriet, Administrator 
Joshua Schneider, Head of Academics 
Keil White, Director of Operations/ Facilities 

1. WELCOME 
John Stegeman, Chairperson for the meeting, called the meeting to order at 5:45 PM. He 
welcomed everyone and said he hoped they had a good holiday. He said this was the first 
meeting of the New Year and, in fact, the first New Year for OnTECH. He said he looked 
forward to it being a great year for OnTECH. 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
The Chairperson then ask for a vote approving the December 21, 2018 meeting minutes. 
Trustee Getahun moved, seconded by Trustee Stegeman to approve the December 21, 2018 
minutes. There being no further additions, modifications, or corrections, the minutes were 
accepted as presented. 

3. FINANCIAL REPORT 
The Chairperson called upon Treasurer to give the financial report. Trustee Kimatian reported 
that the calendar year-end had closed on a positive note with sufficient cash reserves. He said 
that the details of the closing of the calendar year-end would be available for the next meeting. 
Of course, he said, our fiscal year ends on June 30, 2019, so we were only halfway through the 
year. The Treasurer further stated that the rent had been renegotiated to reflect that the 
school did not have the premises available to use until September. He said that the 20% 
amount of the CSP had been received and that there was a plan being developed by CSBM as 
to the best expenditure for the school of the remaining amount. A motion to approve the 
Treasurer’s report was made by Trustee Getahun and seconded by Trustee Stegeman. There 
being no further discussion the motion was unanimously carried by the Board. 

4. FACILITIES / OPERATIONS 
Kiel White, Director of Operations, was called upon by the Chairperson to give the facilities 
report. Mr. White stated that the asbestos AHERA report was close to completion. Each of the 
facilities has completed abatement programs that will enable a certification. On enrollment he 
stated the school enrolled five new students in the last month. Trustee Getahun asked how 
they came about applying to OnTECH. He replied that most were referred by other students or 
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parents who had heard of the school through word of mouth. Chairperson Stegeman asked if 
any had left the school. Mr. White said that two had left, each having individual challenges that 
were better met in another school environment. With respect to progress on the installation 
of the new windows, Mr. White stated that the schedule was on target. Initially, the crews had 
lost some time, but they were able to make that up. Trustee Getahun asked whether the 
building got cold while the windows were being installed. Mr. White said the procedure is to 
cover the windows with polyethylene plastic as the removal work is being done. When the 
current windows are removed until the installation of the new window, plywood is installed in 
the opening. Overall the interior impact of the weather has been minimized, plus the newly 
repaired boiler has been very effective in maintaining heat. 

5. ACADEMICS PROGRAMMING 
Joshua Schneider was called upon by the Chairperson to give the academic report. Mr. 
Schneider first discussed the PBL approach and the teachers’ projects. He then said that to give 
the teachers an understanding of what is expected in a State Education site review, a 
consultant would be coming in to observe the teachers and provide comments on meeting the 
standards. Then there was then discussion on the students in our population having varying 
degrees of skills, credits, etc., and the need to create individualized plans with interim 
benchmark evaluative testing to determine progress. 

6. SCHOOL CULTURE 
The Chairperson called upon Trustee Eagen to report on school culture. Since pre-holiday 
vacation, she reported, there have been three suspensions, which is down significantly from 
the first few months of the semester. She said that procedures for dealing with the individual 
students have included the school’s increased interaction with the parent or guardian, changing 
the class of the student, developing more effective associations between the students, using 
outside counseling, and eliciting the interests of the students to redirect his or her focus in a 
positive manner. Cellphone compliance has also increased, as well as dress code and behavior 
issues. Though not ideal, progress is being achieved. Another consideration is using incentives 
to motivate students, such as a raffle in which all those with perfect attendance would 
potentially win a small gift certificate. The possible use of such incentives is being discussed by 
the administrators. Trustee Getahun asked how many walkers the class had vs those bussed. 
Mr. Schneider said there were 10 walkers in the class. Apparently traveling on Centro is a 
concern to parents as there have been incidents on the buses caused by a few unruly students. 
This year, fortunately, the OnTECH students have been on the yellow buses. The Board 
discussed the possibility of using yellow busses in the future. 

7. PUBLIC RELATIONS 
The Chairperson called upon the Founder to report on public relations. Founder Eagen said 
that under consideration was a radio spot that would be directed toward parents who might 
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want to consider another school at mid-semester when the report card indicates poor 
performing grades. She also said that she had connected with the Onondaga County Health 
services foster child department serving foster populations (currently the school serves a few 
foster children). She mentioned that a prior student at OnTECH who had behavior issues 
appeared before a Family Court Judge during a court proceeding at which the Head of 
Academics was present and the judge had ordered the child return to OnTECH. 

8. GOVERNANCE 
The Chairperson called on the Founder to report on governance matters. Founder Eagen 
reported that the administrators, Messrs White, Price and Schneider, were completing a self-
performance check-in using a rubric that focused on growth mind-set. Founder Eagen is refining 
a CEO position to share with the Board. The Board is actively recruiting new members to the 
Board and currently are in discussions with two members of the community that are not only 
leaders but who represent members of our student population. 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business the Chairperson called for a motion to adjourn. On motion by 
Trustee Getahun, seconded by Trustee Kimatian, and carried unanimously by the Board, the 
meeting was adjourned at 7:15 pm. 
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Minutes for Wednesday, February 20, 2019 Board Meeting 
Approved March 20, 2019 

Place: Administrative Offices OnTECH Charter High School, 810 Willis Ave, Syracuse, NY 13204 

Present: 
Ellen Eagen, Founder & President 
Victoria Giarratano, Excused 
Stephen Kimatian, Secretary/Treasurer 
John Stegeman, Trustee/ Chairperson 
Eskedar Getahun, Trustee 
Francis Coudriet, Administrator 
Joshua Schneider, Head of Academics 
Morgan Boerman, Teacher 

1. WELCOME 
John Stegeman, Chairperson for the meeting, called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m.. He 
welcomed those attending.  

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES/ RESIGNATION OF TRUSTEE SANFORD 
Prior to the approval of the minutes, the Chairperson stated that he wanted to express on the 
record thanks to outgoing Trustee, Bill Sanford, for his service to the Board.  Mr. Sanford had 
communicated to the Board that he would be spending several months in Florida during the 
year and therefore had to resign from the Board as of April 1. He further said that he would still 
be available as an advisor and advocate for the school to the political and greater community. 
In light of Mr. Sanford’s service to the board, having been a member of the board prior to the 
school being awarded a charter and continuing his invaluable service since, the Chairperson 
asked for a vote of commendation for Mr. Sanford. Trustee Kimatian made motion of 
commendation, seconded by Trustee Eagen and passed unanimously. 

The Chairperson then ask for a vote approving the last month’s January meeting minutes. 
Trustee Stegeman notes that the draft minutes were dated 2018 instead of 2019. Trustee 
Eagen moved to accept the minutes with the correction to January 30, 2019, which was 
seconded by Trustee Stegeman.  There being no further additions, modifications, or 
corrections, the motion passed unanimously. 

3. FINANCIAL REPORT 
The Chairperson called upon the Treasurer to give the financial report. Trustee Kimatian 
reported that the calendar year-end financial report had been completed by CSBM. He said 
that the year ended with three months forward cash flow available and that we had met the 
financial metrics required for the lease. Head of Academics, Mr. Schneider, asked whether we 
would pay down any obligation to the Landlord and Trustee Stegeman also asked whether the 
purchase price of the school would be reduced by rent offsets as we went forward. The 
Treasurer responded saying that the monies paid to the landlord were a straight lease payment 
without reduction against any purchase price. The Treasurer further stated that the rent had 
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been renegotiated to reflect that the school did not have the premises available to use until 
September. The Treasurer reported that now that the initial payment of the CSP monies had 
been made, the next step was to submit the plan for allocation of the balance of the monies for 
approval. A motion to approve the Treasurer’s report was made by Trustee Eagen and 
seconded by Trustee Stegeman. There being no further discussion the motion was 
unanimously carried. 

4. FACILITIES/ OPERATIONS 
Since the Director of Facilities was not able to be in attendance due to a personal obligation, 
the Chairperson called upon the Head of Academics for the Facilities report. Mr. Schneider 
stated that Mr. White had left him a report to deliver. Replacement of the windows was ahead 
of schedule. Mr. White had met with two companies to get bids on lockers for tstudents. The 
AHERA abatement report had been complete for the church and the rectory buildings. The 
Trustees then had a brief discussion on the merit of having lockers or not having lockers. 
Science Teacher, Morgan Boerman, said she was in favor of lockers. Trustee Eagen mentioned 
that at times lockers could pose problems relating to storage of contraband so we would need 
clear policies of random searches. Mr. Schneider asked whether there could be a transition 
away from lockers by somehow using alternative storage for the students. There was a 
collective decision that we would continue to collect quotes. 

5. ACADEMIC PROGRAMMING 
The Chairperson called upon the Head of Academics, Joshua Schneider, for the academic 
report. Mr. Schneider reported that mid-term progress reports had been sent home with the 
students. Grades are on the rise. Students will have the opportunity to make up incompletes 
during the term. He reported that Brian Kenealy, a consultant, worked with the students on 
several occasions on modulating behavior during the health period. 

Trustee Eagen then brought up a discussion of whether the school should hold a Teen Mental 
Health Awareness Fair. Trustee Stegeman inquired about who would be the vendors. Trustee 
Eagen said she had reached out to the Salvation Army and others. All agreed that it was an 
extremely significant issue for teens. The question was how to approach the issue as many 
seem not to want to confront the issue directly as mental health, in that some felt it carried a 
stigma. Trustee Eagen mentioned that she has met with a student who was interested chairing 
a committee for a Mental Health Day, and she said that student felt that we need to make sure 
we educate adults about what teens are going through. Trustee Stegeman said that MPH had 
started a wellness day taking on a variety of issues, including animal therapy. He said to a great 
extent the day was about stress management. Trustee Eagen said this sort of event could build 
relationship with resources in the city as well as brand the school as a community that cared 
about the whole child. All decided that they would consider the best time to undertake a 
Mental Health Fair. 
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6. CULTURE/COMMUNITY 
The Chairperson called upon Trustee Eagen to give the culture report and OnTECH’s community 
involvement. Trustee Eagen reported that she brought two students to meet the zoo 
administration at the Rosamond Gifford Zoo to introduce them to OnTECH; but, in fact, after 
these students talked about their passion for animals and experience in their living 
environment class with live mice, the zoo admin invited them and other students to apply for 
jobs as zoo guides – even though the students were younger than the normal age requirement. 
As a result five OnTECH students worked on their application to be Zoo Guides. The students 
worked on their resumes, their cover letters, their application and prepped for their interviews. 
The interviews were held earlier that day and were panel interviews. These would be paid job 
opportunities through CNYWorks if they get the jobs. 

In addition, these same students took on the lead on creating a corps of volunteers at the zoo 
the following day on February 21 (during February break). These student leaders interviewed 
peers interested in volunteering. They created a list of questions for their peers that included 
“how will you grow from this experience” to “what would you do if a child started acting out.” 
They chose 11 students to join them in volunteering at the zoo. Trustee Eagen remarked at how 
important it was for the students to represent OnTECH properly in the community and noted 
that the students ownership of this activity undescored the student-centered social design of 
OnTECH. 

Mr. Schneider then reported on behalf of the Dean of Students regarding students and 
suspension. Mr. Schneider shared a chart illustrating the progress made in reduction of 
suspension and disciplinary action in number of students and in number of days suspended. 
Trustee Eagen thanked the admin for the informative visual but asked for a breakdown of short 
and long term suspension for the following month. 

7. PUBLIC RELATIONS and MEDIA 
The Chairperson then opened a discussion on enrollment for next year. All felt a welcoming 
environment needed to be created for parents visiting. There also needed to be consistency of 
days and times that could be used for parent visits. Having food available was also a plus. 
Trustee Stegeman said that MPH holds admission breakfasts. There was a decision to have 
open houses every Wednesday at 10 a.m. 

Trustee Eagen mentioned that four students accompanied her to Iheart Radio to be interviewed 
about OnTECH. 
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8. GOVERNANCE 
A potential new Trustee will be visiting the school, Fanny Villareal. She has been the executive 
director of the YWCA for many years and is a very active member of the Latino and larger 
community. 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 7:45 pm. 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

Minutes for Wednesday, March 20, 2019 Board Meeting 

Place:  Administrative Offices OnTECH Charter High School, 810 Willis Ave, Syracuse, NY 13204 

Present: 
Ellen Eagen, Founder & President 
Victoria Giarratano, Excused 
Stephen Kimatian, Secretary/Treasurer 
John Stegeman, Trustee/ Chairperson 
Bill Sanford, Excused 
Eskedar Getahun, Trustee 
Francis Coudriet, Administrator 
Joshua Schneider, Head of Academics 
James Price, Dean of Students 
Keil White, Director of Facilities 

1. WELCOME 
John Stegeman, Chairperson for the meeting, called the meeting to order at 5:40 pm. He 
welcomed the Trustees, Staff and Administration and community members attending. 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
The first order of business was to approve the minutes from the prior meeting. The 
Chairperson asked if everyone had a copy of the minutes and had an opportunity to review 
them. He then called for a motion to approve the minutes. Founding Trustee Eagen moved to 
accept the minutes as presented, which was seconded by Trustee Stegeman. There being no 
modifications or further discussion, the motion was unanimously carried. 

3. FINANCIAL REPORT 
The Chairperson called upon the Treasurer to give the financial report. Trustee Kimatian 
reported that the school was in good financial shape given that it had sufficient cash flow 
forward to cover expenses. He said that the invoice for SPED monies to the District had not as 
yet been received. The fifth invoicing segment had been submitted to the SCSD and would 
most likely be paid within the next two weeks. He said that invoicing to the districts outside 
Syracuse had been submitted and he anticipated payment within the next three weeks. 

The Treasurer then reported meeting with a representative from the Omega, Inc. financial 
group for the purpose of exploring a savings/investment 403 (b) fund for employees. He said 
that the procedure was easy to accomplish and the costs of administration were contained. 
What would need to be determined was the extent of any match that the school would make to 
the employee contributions. That is something that the Board would need to consider and vote 
upon when the plan was presented. He said that he was arranging for a meeting with another 
firm to compare the services and costs. 

Thereafter followed a discussion on the need and benefit of providing employees with a solid 
benefit package, one that would be competitive with other surrounding districts and sufficient 
to attract talent from out of state. It was also agreed that where appropriate, teachers should 
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be given additional pay or recognition in future consideration for compensation, for work that 
goes above and beyond their normal duties. 

The next part of the Treasurer’s report concerned the potential economic benefit that could be 
derived from seeking grants from foundations. One foundation targeted was the Walton 
Foundation. Founding Trustee Eagen mentioned the State Stimulus grant that would be 
forthcoming shortly and that it was an opportunity to seek funds for facilities unlike the 
restriction on the CSP monies. 

The Treasurer’s report concluded with a motion by Trustee Stegeman, seconded by Founding 
Trustee Eagen, to accept the report, which was unanimously passed. 

4. FACILITIES 
The Chair called upon Trustee Kimatian to give the facilities report. He reported that significant 
progress had been made on the installation of the windows and compliance with the fire 
emergency windows. He said that the installation was two weeks ahead of schedule. He then 
reported that Keil White and he had met with the company that was installing the security 
system and installation was going to start at the beginning of May. Another matter that had 
been concluded was the Erate application of the school for the coming 2019-2020 school year. 

5. ACADEMIC PROGRAMMING 
The Chair called upon Josh Schneider, Head of Academics to give his report. Mr. Schneider said 
that good progress had been made with Algebra math instruction. He said that one of the 
questions was how the school would handle any incompletes on the grade reports. Given the 
structure of the semesters, a student would be able to convert an incomplete to a complete if 
he or she was able to make up the work. He further reported that the two Regents students 
might take were Algebra and Living Environment. He said that staff was assessing the best 
timing for those students who would be taking the Regents. 

Trustee Stegeman asked how who would sit for the Regents would be determined. Mr. 
Schneider said that it would an evaluation of readiness for the test. Trustee Stegman asked 
whether readiness was determined by a “mindset” evaluation or testing. Thereafter, a 
discussion followed as to assessment for readiness based on “mindset” as well as on test 
performance. In the end, students needed to pass the Regents to graduate. Dean of Students, 
James Price, asked whether there was a pre-test for the Regents in preparation as a way of 
testing readiness. A discussion followed regarding scheduling mock regent tests. Trustee 
Stegeman said that students perform better on tests when they take tests, so there is bit of a 
conundrum between evaluating “mindset” and the pure taking of the test. 
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There was then a discussion on the instructional connectivity between the PBL model and 
meeting the testing requirements of the State. Mr. Price stated we want our students to not 
only pass the test but truly understand. 

Mr. Schneider reported that the “mindset” evaluations had been completed for the students. 
He said our goal for the students is to accomplish both growth and accountability. In a 
refinement of the instructional approach, he said that students were being regrouped, taking 
into account their performance, capability, and behavior. The grouping would allow for a 
better teaching environment in each class. 

6. SCHOOL CULTURE 
The Chair called upon the Dean of Students, James Price, to speak about the school climate and 
culture. Mr. Price said that overall behavior had improved and progress had been made with 
the most challenging students. He displayed for the Trustees and those assembled a series of 
charts graphing the number of incidents of student behavior, repeat offenders and the 
seriousness of the behavior as well as those incidents leading to corrective action or 
suspension. In each instance there was a positive trend. Founding Trustee Eagen said that it 
was good to see the progress. She emphasized that the approach for intervention has to be 
designed to meet the individual needs of the student and addressed in a way that takes into 
account the unique emotional-social characteristics of the student. The goal of OnTECH she 
said was to redirect the student in way that enabled them to stay in school, not to eject a 
student for isolated occurrence. Mr. Price said he and the other staff would continue using 
their best efforts to address incidents immediately and deal with issues uniquely to the student. 

7. PUBLIC RELATIONS 
Founding Trustee Eagen reported that the school had hosted an open 
parent/grandparent/guardian and visitor day forum on Wednesday mornings once a week for 
the last three weeks. She said that Office Administrator, Nakisha Graves, had ably undertaken 
the responsibility to see these sessions were orchestrated properly. They have been held in the 
large annex room, which has been set up for the events. Realistically, we have found that 
attendance has been relatively minimal since most parents/guardians seem to prefer to come 
into the office at a more convenient time and just sign their students up. Ms. Patrina Thomas, 
an athletic coach and teacher, who was an attendee at the meeting, offered that if we created 
an exciting “day at OnTECH” for the parents and students, they would come to sign up at that 
time. 

Founding Trustee Eagen then reported that an media recruiting campaign was being developed 
with the goal of enrollment. She said the school was working with an advertising agency. 
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8. GOVERNANCE 
The Chair called upon Founding Trustee Eagen for the Governance report. Trustee Eagen said 
that the school was currently advertising for a Head of School and also for teachers that would 
be needed for next years. She said there were a number of applications and they were being 
reviewed for evaluation and interviews. She referred to the above stated goal of the school to 
provide competitive wages and benefits. She was glad to report that Pastor William Mitchell 
had agreed to join the Board of Directors. He is at the final stage of fulfilling the requirement of 
the application to be presented to the Charter School Office. 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 7:45 pm. 
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CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 

Minutes for Wednesday, April 17, 2019 Board Meeting 

Place:  Administrative Offices OnTECH Charter High School, 810 Willis Ave, Syracuse, NY 13204 

Present: 
Ellen Eagen, Founder & President 
Victoria Giarratano, Excused 
Stephen Kimatian, Secretary/Treasurer 
John Stegeman, Trustee/ Chairperson 
Eskedar Getahun, Trustee 
Joshua Schneider, Head of Academics 
James Price, Dean of Students 
Keil White, Director of Facilities 
Morgan Boerman, Science Teacher 
Bill Stanford, Trustee, Excused 

1. WELCOME 
John Stegeman, Chairperson for the meeting, called the meeting to order at 5:45 pm. He 
welcomed the Trustees, Teachers, Administration and representatives from the community 
members. 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
The first order of business was to approve the minutes from the prior meeting. The 
Chairperson asked if everyone had a copy of the minutes and had an opportunity to review 
them. He then called for a motion to approve the minutes. Founding Trustee Eagen moved to 
accept the minutes as presented, which was seconded by Trustee Stegeman. There being no 
modifications or further discussion, the motion was unanimously carried. 

3. FINANCIAL REPORT 
The Chairperson called upon the Treasurer to give the financial report. Trustee Kimatian 
reported that there were three items to report on at this time. (1) First was the general ledger 
report on the status of revenue and expenses. He stated that the budget was on target and 
exceeded projections of net cash flow after expenses. He said that there was a reserve of at 
least two months forward. (2) Second was an update on the CSP. The Treasurer stated that the 
amount that can be attributed properly to CSP expenditures was being calculated by our 
business agent CSBM. Once that amount is known, we will know how much additional is 
available for purchases. A list has been compiled of the most important equipment to be 
acquired. (3) Third was the State Stimulus Grant RFP, which is ordinarily issued in January but 
was just published this week. He said the construction company was evaluating what 
opportunities there were for building renovation, particularly AC installation. The catch is that 
the grant project must be completed by July 31, 2019 in order to receive the monies. He said 
there would be additional information to report at the next meeting. Upon motion by 
Founding Trustee, seconded by the Trustee Stegeman, the Treasurer’s report was unanimously 
approved. 
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4. FACILITIES 
The facilities report was given by Keil White. He reported that with the installation of the 
windows the Fire Code regulations were met and the building could now receive its certificate 
of occupancy. The fire alarm system was installed in the Church and now needs to be approved 
by the Fire Department as conforming to Code. There was issue of the school using the Church 
by the City of Syracuse and the issue was before the Department of Facilities of NYSED. The 
Rectory is approved for usage as the school might find it beneficial. 

Reference was made to the AC project as a needed school building improvement, particularly as 
OnTECH is a year-round school, having air conditioning is essential. In putting together the 
response to the State Stimulus Grant, information was gathered from the construction 
company having worked on the school over the past year, as well as an HVAC company and a 
structural engineering firm. A special summer arts curriculum was also developed by the 
Founder as part of the grant to illustrate the valuable educational instruction that will be 
undertaken during the summer quarter.

 A use of the land adjacent to the north wall of the building was brought up. There is a city lot 
parcel of land that is vacant that could be used for agriculture in conjunction with the 
instruction. The property can be acquired for use by the school and would be a valuable 
teaching tool. The Founder expressed her appreciation to the teachers who investigated this 
possibility. She asked that such excellent suggestions be brought to the attention of the 
administration so the proper procedures could be undertaken. 

5. ACADEMIC PROGRAMMING 
In the academic programming report, Founding Trustee Eagen stated that several events were 
proposed to her in connection with the educational instruction. She reiterated her appreciation 
to all the teachers who brought ideas and potential projects into the school for the benefit of 
the students. She said she was glad that staff was taking the initiative to think of student 
participatory activities that would have educational benefit. She said the one thing that was 
required is that suggestions follow a procedure whereby they could be evaluated by 
administration for their educational value, cost and any safety considerations. Most 
importantly, events needed to have a plan that would assure their execution in the manner 
intended. 

Given that foundation for planning, the activity proposed of OnTECH students reading to 
students at Porter Elementary could be accomplished effectively. Likewise, the excursion to 
Onondaga Community College to see a play in which one of the teachers was acting would also 
be a good event with an opportunity for students to go backstage and get a behind the scenes 
view of the play production. In the same way, a class participation in a study under the aegis of 
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the math teacher and in connection with a graduate paper would be a learning opportunity for 
students. 

In response to further matters with respect to academics, the Academic Dean brought up the 
teachers’ evaluation of the entering class and determining the most effective instructional 
grouping for the students. He reported that each of the student’s level of performance was 
discussed as well as the best grouping of that student within the class. Consideration was also 
given to those students who might be taking Regents examinations. 

Another matter bought up under academics was the possible acquisition of a student 
information system known as Power School. The Founder explained to the Board the use of the 
system as she was familiar with the software from her oversight of other charter school 
operations. She explained that as with most software usage, the information it generated was 
only as good as the information input. In this instance she stressed the importance of staff 
becoming thoroughly familiar with the procedures and the functions of Power School. It has a 
high learning curve, but once acclamation is made, it can be a very useful tool in keeping track 
of student transcripts, tests, attendance, disciplinary issues and other student data. Trustee 
Stegeman asked at what point was it important to have the system up and running. The 
response was that the target date was by the end of this fiscal school year. 

At this point the Chairperson asked for a motion to purchase Power School, the cost being 
$13,775. On motion made by Trustee Kimatian, seconded by Trustee Eagen, and there being no 
further discussion, it was unanimously passed. 

5. STUDENT RECRUITMENT 
Founding Trustee Eagen then reported on the steps being taken to recruit the incoming class. 
She explained that it was important for OnTECH to distinguish itself as a unique school 
particularly dedicated to students who might not be performing at their best level in a 
traditional school environment. Toward that end, she said that our literature and media 
campaign for recruiting was directed toward the unconventional student, one who might need 
a different school to feel “at home.” In addition, another filter was using a relatively low level 
of family income and also targeting certain geographic zip codes that would have a higher 
likelihood than others to have students meeting these metrics. 

With that in mind she said the media campaign being undertaken includes radio, billboard, 
digital messaging to those meeting the above criteria, FaceBook, direct mail and other social 
media, online and print advertising. Taking a page from teenagers attraction to graphic novels 
and to give the school a unique identifier, a graphic character was developed in conjunction 
with an advertising agency to be a “spokesperson” for the school. After several renditions and 
thinking through many of the desired characteristics, the selection of a character looking like an 
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alien was chosen. It allowed for a neutral approach to individuals, with the emphasis on 
characteristics of an unconventional character. It was a different approach that could be quite 
intriguing, encouraging a parent or student to want to know more about the school. 

7. PERSONNEL& STAFFING 
The Chairperson called upon the Founding Trustee to give any personnel update. She reported 
that several individuals had responded to the OnTECH ads for teachers. Among the candidates 
was a promising math teacher who would be visiting from Texas and who is scheduled to be 
interviewed. She said that she wanted in addition to the administrator interviewers, the 
candidate to be interviewed by teachers and by students. 

8. GOVERNANCE 
The Founding Trustee also reported n governance. She said that it was important to have 
Trustees that could bring expertise to the board that would be of great value to the school. She 
said she was happy to report that Pastor Willie Mitchell had almost completed his application 
which would be forwarded to the Charter School Office. He said that Pastor Mitchell has a 
great sense of community, of education, of working with the student population and will be a 
great addition to the Board. 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business on the agenda and no new business, on motion duly made and 
seconded, the meeting was adjourned by unanimous vote. 
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Minutes of May 29, 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Place: Administrative Offices OnTECH Charter High School, 810 Willis Ave, Syracuse, NY 
13204 

Present: 
Ellen Eagen, Trustee & President 
Victoria Giarratano, Trustee 
Stephen Kimatian, Secretary/Treasurer 
John Stegeman, Chairman 
Francis Coudriet, Administration 
Eskedar Getahun, Trustee, Excused 
Bill Sanford, Trustee, Excused 

1. WELCOME 
The Chairperson called the meeting to order at 5:45 PM. He welcomed the Trustees and 
community members attending. 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES/ RESIGNATION OF TRUSTEE SANFORD 
The first order of business was approval of the minutes of the prior meeting of April 17, 2019. 
There being no changes or modifications the minutes were accepted as presented. 

3. FINANCIAL REPORT 
The Chairperson called for the Treasurer’s report. The Treasurer reported that the finances of 
the school were on budget, that the current P&L indicated that there was a two month forward 
cash flow to sustain the operations. There was one more billing cycle within the fiscal year that 
would generate incremental cash flow. In addition, the invoice for SPED monies to the district 
had not as yet been paid, but it was anticipated that payment would be made within the next 
month. CSP grant requests were being finalized. The requirement is that the request with 
invoices relating to the purchases must be finalized by June 30th. The Treasurer then reported 
on the status of the State Stimulus Grant for which an application had be made for Air 
Conditioning the school. He was pleased to report that there was verbal approval of the grant, 
that only seven upstate school were awarded grants, and that OnTECH was fortunate to be one 
of the seven. Written confirmation and the agreement of the grant terms would follow. An 
essential requirement of the grant was that the work be completed by July 31st. 

4. FACILITIES 
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The Trustee said she was glad to report that the CO for the school had been received. The 
church still needs approval for a CO. Given the ample room in the church, it is an excellent 
space to use for education of the students, teaching of project based curriculum and as a place 
for meeting. Trustee Eagen stated that students do recognize a nice place to be in as one 
student said to her. “I really appreciate the way the school looks” and in a share out another 
students said, “What I like about OnTECH is that it is clean.” The air conditioning grant was 
covered above and will enable the best conditions for year round education. 

5. ACADEMIC PROGRAMMING 
Trustee Eagen was called upon to give the academic report in absence of the Head of 
Academics. She said that it was very good to have an outside consultant come in to evaluate 
teachers. It make for an unbiased objective review. She then reported on the mastery based 
approach to curriculum that OnTECH is using. She said it is a step in the right direction in 
allowing students to accumulate credits in the most efficient manner. She then brought up the 
garden plot that she would like to cultivate and use in conjunction with the curriculum. We have 
spoken to the lawyers to secure the ownership. Trustee Giarratano said that support could be 
given by the Cornell Cooperative Extension to cultivate and plan for growth on the parcel, 
particularly if the work was being done in the afternoon. She mentioned some of the many 
considerations that would have to be taken into account, such as soil evaluation, importing of 
soil and fertilizers and protection from predators of the plants. There is also the consideration of 
having hoop houses for year round growth. Trustee Giarratano mentioned John Bowne High 
School which has an extensive agriculture program, Broome High school with an aquaponics 
laboratory and Windsor Free Academy are just some examples of schools that have undertaken 
agricultural curriculum through projects. 

6. CULTURAL PROGRAMMING 
The next report by Trustee Eagen was on the very successful dinner for families. She said she 
was very proud that the students participated in serving the food and cleaning up. They all wore 
bright green aprons and went about serving the table with smiles. Trustee Stegeman, who had 
brought his family, said they had a delightful time and everyone seemed to be enjoying 
themselves. The next event presented were the two Saturdays at the zoo where OnTECH was 
a sponsor of a table featuring the school. Teachers Boerman, Burghardt and Wright were 
present and helped to make the event successful. On the table were hands-on projects 
available to young students who wanted to participate and learn about OnTECH. Overall, 
Trustee Eagen said OnTECH had established a close working relationship with the zoo and she 
was proud of the students who now had secured paying jobs through the OnTECH relationship. 

7. STUDENT ENROLLMENT 
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The Chairperson called upon Trustee Eagen to report on enrollment. She said that the current 
enrollment of 9th grade was at 86 students, but there was some variation as some of the 
applicants for the next year being received were also currently 9th graders who would be 
included in the rising 10th grade class, which would increase the class size. Enrolling now also 
makes them eligible for the 4th quarter of this school year. Depending on the final count, 
including these potentially new students, the class size may be larger, and a formal amendment 
may or may not be required of the 110 students that were initially authorized in the charter. A 
variation of 15% is allowed either less or greater than that number. Administrator Fran Coudreit 
stated that the current enrollment of students for the new 9th grade was at 45, with applications 
coming in everyday. The reaching out to students of Southside Academy and the media 
campaign of billboard, digital social media and radio seem to be having a positive impact. 

8. PERSONNEL AND STAFFING 
The Chairperson then asked about the staffing of the school considering that we would be 
entering a second year. Trustee Eagen said that interviews were being conducted of 
prospective teachers. One candidate who had ties to Syracuse came up from Texas and went 
through the interview process. Another candidate from New Jersey was scheduled for an 
interview. Teachers were all asked to give their notice of intent as to whether they intended to 
work during the summer. 

9. GOVERNANCE 
The Chairperson called upon Trustee Kimatian to give the report on governance. Trustee 
Kimatian said he was pleased to report that Pastor Willie Mitchell had completed his application 
to be a Trustee and has been fingerprinted. Upon clearance received, he would be a great 
addition to the Board. 

The Trustee Eagen expressed her thanks to Trustee Stegeman who was completing his term on 
the Board this summer, when he would be moving to Seattle for another educational 
opportunity. 

The Board officially accepted the resignation of Trustee Sanford as of June 1, and Trustee 
Eagen thanked him for his invaluable service as a founding board member. Trustee Kimatian 
moved to accept the resignation of Trustee Sanford which was seconded by Trustee Eagen. 
There being no further discussion, the motion was unanimously carried. 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business or new business, a motion was made to adjourn by Trustee 
Giarranto,seconded by Trustee Kimatian and was carried unanimously. 
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

Minutes of Wednesday, June 25, 2019 Meeting 

Location:  OnTECH Charter High School 810 Willis Avenue Syracuse 13204 

Present: 
Ellen Eagen, Founder & President 
Stephen Kimatian, Secretary/Treasurer 
John Stegeman, Excused 
Victoria Giarratano, Trustee 
Eskedar Getahun, Excused 
Fran Coudriet, Administration 
Omar Gonzalez, Teacher 
Patrina Thomas, Teacher 

1. WELCOME 
Chairperson of the meeting, Trustee Kimatian, opened the meeting by greeting community 
members and staff and welcoming Board members. 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
As the first order of business, the chairperson asked for an approval of the prior month’s meeting 
minutes of May 29, 2019. Trustee Giarratano moved, seconded by Trustee Eagen for approval 
of the minutes as presented. There being no objection or modifications proposed, the motion 
was unanimously carried. 

3. FINANCIAL REPORT 
The chairperson presented the Treasurer’s report. He stated that revenue and expenses were in 
line with budget and that June 30, 2019, being the end of the fiscal year, that the business office 
was preparing the numbers for the year end report. A final report should be available at the next 
Board meeting. He then reported on the status of the CSP. He said that a priority list had been 
compiled to utilize the grant monies in the most effective manner given the needs of the school. 
Since a new 9th grade class would be entering, the items requested included furniture, 
computers, kitchen equipment and microscopes among others. An important request also was 
Power School, which is a software program that allows for the gathering of the necessary data on 
student attendance and grades and will enable the school to more effectively keep current on the 
required reports to the State. Without this software, the input of the data has been very laborious. 
The next item of the financial report was on the budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. He stated 
that a working model was in draft and that the budget was in the process of completion. 

4. FACILITIES 
The chairperson stated there were two significant items with respect to facilities. One was the 
status of the Stimulus Grant. As explained at the previous Board meeting, the normal issuance of 
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the RFP for Stimulus Grants was normally done in January of the year. Because of changes in 
the program, the State did not issue the awards until June, yet the required completion date of 
July 30, 2019 still had to be met. OnTECH was fortunate to be awarded a grant of the maximum 
amount of $200,000 for the installation of an air conditioning system, only seven upstate schools 
being recipients of the award. Knowing the deadline between the RFP issuance and required 
completed was tight, the school lined up the contractors and completed the design for the AC 
system on the hopeful anticipation of getting the award. The actual award notice was received 
earlier this month and the work is scheduled to begin on July 6th when all the parts will be 
delivered. He stated that the clock was ticking, but that the school had every intention of 
meeting all the metrics of the award. 

The second item with respect to facilities was with respect to gaining a CO for the Church. All 
code requirements with respect to fire and safety had been completed with the only outstanding 
item being that the Department of Facilities of NYSED requests a certain number of lavatories. 
The Syracuse City Fire Department has no issue with using the church as is, as well as City 
Codes which has no issue. The next step is to request a meeting with the relevant authorities to 
give the reasons why the church is important to our educational mission and that the lavatories 
requirement is more than needed to accommodate proper usage. 

5. ACADEMIC PROGRAMMING 

Founder Eagen stated that an exciting academic curriculum was prepared for the summer 
session. She iterated the fact that OnTECH was one of the few schools, perhaps the only charter 
school in the state, to have an all year round programming. This had several benefits, among 
them the opportunity for students to make up credits and get on track when they were not and the 
opportunity to explore areas such as the arts and STEAM subjects. An organization named 
Educational Alchemy has been retained to write a curriculum that meets these objectives. In 
addition to the summer session curriculum, teachers were working on developing curriculum for 
the new school year. One challenge is the number of incompletes of some of the students. A 
plan has to be devised on a personal basis that addresses the issues of each student. 
Another matter discussed was the timing of students taking Regents examinations. The final 
report on the students sitting on for the Math Regents would take place next month. 

6. CULTURAL PROGRAMMING 

Over the last month, Founder Eagen reported that students had gone on educational and cultural 
field trips. Buses were hired for the transportation. One trip was to Cornell University where the 
students were exposed to agriculture and agribusiness. Another was to the zoo, which was 
instructive with respect to zoology as well as offering some students paid summer work and 
volunteer work. A third field trip was to the Red House, enabled by teacher Karen Wright, 
where students were exposed to theater and the behind the scenes staging of plays. 

7. STUDENT ENROLLMENT 
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The chairperson called on Founder Eagen to report on the status of student enrollment. She 
stated that OnTECH was in a very good position for the next year school year. A media 
campaign was undertaken that cut across several platforms, including radio, billboard, online, 
postings on digital devices and FaceBook. There was also an excellent article in the Post 
Standard online and in the Sunday Empire section that spoke very favorably about the school and 
delineated many of the unique characteristics the school offers to students. She said that she was 
particularly pleased that the quotes from her were accurate, as sometimes that does not always 
happen in interviews. A major success was also the appearance on the WSYR-TV program 
Bridge Street, which allowed students to be showcased in a very positive light. Plus, a very 
powerful tool of recruiting was the event held specifically for the students of the Southside 
Academy who were invited to OnTECH for a shadow day. The sum total of the outreach was 
over 150 applicants for the entering 9th grade class to date. Of course, she said, it could be that a 
percentage of this group do not take the next step and not everyone enrolled shows up on the first 
day of school, but it was in all a very good indication of a solid entering class. 

The Founder then brought up a point that the charter needed to be amended with respect to the 
number of students in the current 9th grade class. OnTECH was awarded a charter which 
allowed for a total of 100 FTE students for the first year 9th grade class. A 15% allowance is 
given for being over or under that number. Since the FTE number of students in the class was at 
84, a request needed to be made to the charter school office to allow amendment of the number 
to 90 FTE students, which encompasses the actual level of students within the allowable over 
and under percentages. A motion was made by Trustee Girratano and seconded by Trustee 
Kimatian to amend the charter to allow for 90 FTE students and make that request to the charter 
school office. There being no further discussion, a vote was taken and passed unanimously to 
that end. 

8. PERSONNEL/ STAFFING 
Founder Eagen reported that the staffing for the new school year was well underway, that two 
teachers had been hired and that many others had applied and were being vetted for the school’s 
needs and their qualifications. Ads have been placed on Indeed.com which have generated 
substantial interest. 

9. GOVERNANCE 

First, the Board officially accepted Trustee Stegman’s resignation as a Board member to be 
effective upon Willie Mitchell’s position being approved as a new board member. The Board 
thanked him again for his service as a founding board member and wished him congratulations 
on his new position of a head of upper school at an independent school in Seattle, Washington. 
The chairperson then stated that the June Board meeting was the time of the annual meeting and 
that certain Board positions were expiring and also new officers had to be selected. With respect 
to the Board, the terms for Trustees Getahun and Kimatian were expiring. Both Trustees Getahun 
and Kimatian were nominated for a second three year term. A motion was made and seconded to 
approve those said Trustees for a second term by Trustee Eagen and carried unanimously. The 
chairperson then said that the floor was open for nomination of officers. Ellen Eagen was 
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nominated as President and Stephen Kimatian was nominated as Secretary/Treasurer. It was 
suggested by Trustee Kimatian that the Vice-President position be left open as he would like to 
nominate Pastor Mitchell for that position once he officially joined the Board at the next 
meeting. A motion was requested to approve that procedure. Trustee Eagen moved to keep the 
Vice-Chairperson position open until the next meeting. There being no opposition, the motion 
was carried unanimously. The floor then returned to voting on the current slate of officers 
nominated. A motion was made to approve the officers as stated above, which was carried 
unanimously. 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no new business or further agenda items, a motion was made and seconded to 
adjourn the meeting which was carried unanimously. 
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Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Created: 07/17/2019 • Last updated: 11/02/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018 19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019 20. 

ONTECH CHARTER HIGH SCHOOLSection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019 20 

For the inaugural year of the school, 2018
2019, multiple media platforms were
harnessed to execute a strategic marketing
plan tailored to the mission of the school.
The mission of OnTECH is to reach 
economically disadvantaged students whose
performance is challenged in a traditional
school district. The marketing plan
organically evolved from the schools pre
charter activities prior to the charter award
in December 2016. These marketing plans
encompassed several kinds of media and
personal outreach into the community.
Relying on the expertise of one of our Board
members who was a former television 
executive in the region, a strategic use of a
multi media campaign was developed
toward recruiting students. 

OnTECH has intentionally used media that
reaches into the economically disadvantaged
areas of the city, such as radio stations with
listener demographics aligned with its
mission, print distribution at libraries and
non profits where the message would reach
parents and children who might most benefit
from OnTECH. Likewise the same approach
was taken with the use of digital and online
media, billboard and television. The strategic 
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placement of the OnTECH message was
geared toward reaching an economically
disadvantaged population and has resulted
in an outstanding population of students who
are consonant to the school’s mission. 

OnTECH is located in the City of Syracuse
School District, which because of its poverty
level is considered a Free and Reduced Lunch 
District. For over two years, OnTECH has had
an effective community marketing strategy
which has provided interaction with all
segments of the community, culminating in
the direct relationship with parents and
students in the recruiting process. From the
highest levels of elected officials, the County
Executive, Senate and Assembly Legislative
representatives, Syracuse Police Chief,
Onondaga County Sheriff, as well as with
business, education and philanthropic
leaders, to meeting with hundreds of
individuals, organizations, parents, students
and members of the community to present
the school, OnTECH has built an 
extraordinary base of support. For over three
years, OnTECH has had an effective website
which invited questions and provided a
platform for dialogue from all interested
parties. 

Central to the recruitment is the branding of
OnTECH as a school that educates the 
students, but also provides wrap around
support to families, as a “community that
cares.” The objective is to recruit students by
bringing the branding message to the
students from every media platform. 

Branding: Two themes have been adopted
for branding: one is “ReThink High School”
which encourages parents to think about
how high school could be better for their
children. In fact, OnTECH is the result of 
rethinking the high school experience and
taking steps to make high school a more
effective deliverer of education. The OnTECH 
model includes small classes, hands on 
learning and asking questions that have no
wrong answers. The second branding theme
is “Finding Genius,” which implicitly contains
the thought that every child can learn and
that every child has a special ability. The 

OnTECH recruited and enrolled throughout its
inaugural year, steadily increasing
enrollment throughout the year. Marketing
strategies were continued throughout the
year, including strategic placement of radio
ads, print, digital and social media.
Enrollment data indicates that radio was an 
effective means of recruiting families who
are economically disadvantaged, specifically
by targeting grandparents of those students. 

Notably, during the year, the messaging of
all marketing was targeted and strategic. For
example, after the first semester of the
district’s calendar year, on the day report
cards were issued district wide, OnTECH ran 
a radio spot asking parents whether their
ninth graders were performing as they
hoped. In addition, the school constantly and
strategically populated its social media,
especially its instagram account, to capitalize
on trending interests in the community, such
as social justice, earth day, commemorative
holidays such as MLK Day. 
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OnTECH response is “let us find the Genius
in your student.” 

Print and Online: There have been several 
newspaper articles published in the Syracuse
Post Standard and the paper’s online site 
syracuse.com on the school and its mission. 
Both the print and online version of the Post
Standard have been used for buying
advertising time. OnTECH has also made
extensive use of disseminating information
about the school in the print media, such as
with rack cards and print brochures,
restating the message in different ways,
being attuned to the reactions of parents and
students and continuing to refine the

Econom message. Rack cards and flyers were
ically distributed to local non profit organizations,
Disadva libraries and at parent and community
ntaged meetings. 

Radio: The Syracuse iHeart radio stations,
WSYR and WHEN Power 620 were used to 
broadcast a six week flight of commercials
covering all dayparts. The school Founder
had lengthy interviews on five radio stations.
In conjunction with the radio advertising, the
school was a presenting sponsor at the major
African American Juneteenth Festival event 
in Syracuse over June 15th and 16th. The
radio advertising continued through the
month of June into July 

Billboard: Ads for OnTECH enrollment were 
prominently placed on a strategic electronic
billboard which is situated on a main avenue 
of the city and a few blocks from the school.
The heavy traffic on this boulevard gave
significant exposure for a six week period. 

Direct Mail: A unique direct mail campaign
was launched in the third week of June 
reaching all family households within a two
mile radius of the school, the literature 
showing the parents and students the path
to the school from their home. The unique
aspect of this campaign is that the two mile
radius is the distance that determines 
whether a student walks to school or is 
eligible for bussing. The pitch here is that
OnTECH is your neighborhood school. 

Television: In the quarter leading into the 

The success of the first year program was
harnessed as part of the recruitment efforts.
We found that students were our best 
recruiters. Recruiting has become an
ancillary benefit of our students involvement
and participation in the fabric of our
community. For example, as part of our
programming, students apply to represent
the school as student ambassadors in 
various events throughout the city. As part of
this program ambassadors were trained and
participated in many events throughout the
City interacting and promoting the schools.
For example, students have participated as
volunteers at Rosamond Gifford Zoo, 
marched in the Juneteenth parade and
manned our booth. In addition, students 
have been the key spokespeople at various
media opportunities. 

Unlike the prior year when the Founder
appeared on television and spoke on the
radio, this year students participated on our
local morning television show and also
participated on a local radio show. While we
have incorporated direct mail to the
community in which the school is situated,
the students also wrote personal greetings to
the neighborhood homes during the holidays,
incorporating messaging about the mission
of the school. Enrollment data indicates that 
many parents research the school after a
positive interaction with our students. 

We also added to our branding themes of
“ReThink High School” and “Finding Genius”
with a creative approach. Since we know that
many students like graphic novels and
animated video, OnTECH developed a
graphic character who represented a person
coming from another world and was looking
for a great school. Among the key tag lines
were the phrases, “I searched the universe”
and “I’m glad I landed at OnTECH” followed
by “You will be, too” This graphic person was
included in all the promotional campaigns, in
print, on rack cards and flyers, on billboards
and in digital, social media and Facebook
advertising. There was even a life size
cardboard cutout of our graphic person that
we brought to Festivals and live events. This
added component to our advertising to reach 
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school year, television ads of :10 length were
produced and placed in a three week flight
on the ABC network affiliate beginning with
the second half of June. The copy in the
spots accents the two major campaign
branding points of “ReThink High School”
and “Finding Genius.” The spots ran in early
morning, afternoon, news and evening
dayparts. Each is tagged with a URL that will
bring the viewer to a landing page that will
offer an application or more information. 

Digital/social media: OnTECH has used the
ABC network television station and Spectrum
cable for a digital advertising campaign
connecting with all digital devices used by a
selected family profile of likely students. As a
result of that digital campaign, there were
over 2,100,000 impressions, 49,000
engagements and 950 site visits. The
campaign also used the “ReThink High
School” and “Finding Genius” branding.
Given the ability to track digital ads and the
results, as well as being able to determine
the analytics from the landing page, the
campaigns were constantly altered and/or
extended to maximize effectiveness. A 
campaign was launched through Spectrum
Reach, the digital advertising arm of
Spectrum Cable. Notably, the social media
placement specifically targeted economically
disadvantaged families focusing on
demographics identified by their household
income among other criteria. 

Events & Promotions: There are many
instances where OnTECH board members 
and representatives have attended events to
publicize the school. The Juneteenth Festival
is one example. The presentation at venues
to parents and students continues to be an
ongoing part of the recruiting campaign.
Among the venues are the African American
churches, the Boys & Girls Clubs, the
community centers, the various festivals and
meetings of the New American community. 

Door to Door/Person to Person: In addition, a
core of the recruiting success was
grassroots, with families at different
locations, such as at the Boys & Girls Clubs,
community centers, churches and local
agencies serving the needs of the families 

students and parents seemed to inject a
lively connection to the audience and on
digital media alone we achieved over
3,000,000 impressions. We were also pleased
that in going into our second year, we have
had 200 applicants to date. 
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and students who are economically
disadvantaged. OnTECH was not only
present but sponsored several of the city
events including our Juneteenth Festival To
support the recruiting process, OnTECH
created a paid position called a community
connector who is a member of the 
community the school intends to serve. The
first phase of the community connector
position was to assist in recruiting and
enrolling students. 

Up to and including 2018 2019, the year
prior to opening, members of the OnTECH
board established relationships with the
numerous communities that include 
ELL/Multilingual students. Board members
met with members of the New American 
communities (e.g., Congolese, Burmese,
Somali) and attended many cultural events
and dinners and visited members’ homes to 
discuss the key design elements of OnTECH.
Job opportunities for community connectors
were created and posted and members of
the communities were identified in each 
community and relationships were built.
OnTECH had booths at many of the cultural
city wide events such as the Latino Festival
and the Refugee Day to provide information
to the communities. All flyers and
information about the school were translated 
into many different languages including
Spanish, Swahili, French and Karen dialects.
In addition, rack cards were placed in certain

English libraries, churches and religious centers that
Langua had programming that specifically served
ge Latino and New American communities. In 
Learner addition translators were provided at board
s/Multili meetings. OnTECH took out paid advertising
ngual in the Spanish speaking print media and
Learner radio media, and also the Founder was 
s invited to speak on several Spanish speaking

radio stations. 

During the 18 19 school year, community
connectors who had successfully recruited
from the New American communities were 
given employment opportunities at OnTECH
and became a part of the staff serving the
students. For example, the head of the
kitchen staff is a member of the Karen 
community. Not only did he serve in this 

OnTECH continues to target both the
Spanish speaking and New American
population through the same means
employed prior to and leading up to the
inaugural year. Attention will be made to
ensure that marketing materials are
available in multiple languages. OnTECH will
continue to support community events by
purchasing advertising space and booths at
the various festival and community
programs. For example, this summer,
OnTECH is again a sponsor of the Latino
Festival. Spanish speaking OnTECH students
will volunteer their time at the booth, 
recruiting students. 

We notice that parents of Spanish speaking
and New American families do not always
attend student events. OnTECH staff and 
community connectors will reach out to
families to ensure that the families 
understand the information sent home and to 
find solutions to issues such as 
transportation or child care, which at times
prevent parents’ attendance. In addition,
efforts will be made to recruit board 
members who are leaders in the 
communities that include ENL and 
Multilingual families. 
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capacity but he met regularly with the Kareni
students to determine their needs and 
concerns and functioned as a translator with 
the New American families. In addition 
OnTECH staff worked with many of the
American sponsors of the New American
families to ensure that the OnTECH families 
understood the information being sent home
and the families’ role in their student’s 
educational program. 

Prior to the inaugural year, OnTECH
marketed itself to the community as a school
for non traditional learners. As a result, 
parents of students with special needs did
attend open houses and inquire about the
programming. Students with a variety of
needs enrolled including those classified with
learning disabilities, emotional disturbances
and anxiety disorders. Key design elements
of the school including the year round
programming, the elimination of bells, the

Student hour long classes, hands on learning,
s with consistent daily schedule, small classes, and
Disabilit the morning and afternoon advisory both
ies attracted and supported students with IEPS

and 504s. During the enrollment season,
parents were encouraged to discuss their
students’ needs and were encouraged to
enroll. OnTECH made an effort to reach out 
and build a working relationship with the CSE
of the Syracuse City School District so that
we could get timely information regarding
IEPs and properly and timely schedule CSE
annuals and tri annuals so that students 
entering did not lose any consistency in their
services. 

As a result of the relationships we have
developed with outside social service and
therapeutic service providers of our students
with special needs, many therapists and
social workers have recommended clients, 
who have special needs, to us. As a result of
our investment in explaining our program,
inviting them to tour our facilities and meet
with their clients at OnTECH, advocates, 
therapists and social workers have
recommended OnTECH to parents and to
students. Even advocates within the district 
and other charter schools have suggested
OnTECH as an alternative educational 
environment for certain nontraditional 
learners. 

In addition, our marketing continues to reach
families who have nontraditional learners 
and students with IEPs as the key design
elements resonate with the pedagogical
approaches that best serve students with
IEPs such as hands on, small classes, and 
overall smaller school setting. 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018 19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019 20 

OnTECH is continuing to develop the social
emotional support it provides students and
families throughout the year. OnTECH
provides school year round to students,
providing them meals and education
throughout the summer. In fact, OnTECH
offered to be a city site for all youth to
receive free breakfast and lunch. 

OnTECH’s unique year round program keeps 
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Efforts to retain students focus on both 
communicating and developing relationships
with the families, in addition to providing
wrap around support for the families,
recognizing that families who are
economically disadvantaged face unique
challenges regarding home and food
security. 

Leading up to the inaugural year, OnTECH
held Friday focus meetings for incoming
students and families. Snacks and lunch 
were always served and programming was
offered to welcome parents, students and
younger siblings to educate families about
our key designs. During the school year,
advisories provided students academic as
well as social emotional support. To develop
relationships authentically, advisors reached
out regularly to parents to communicate not
only the academic progress of their students
but to simply highlight and commend certain
student behavior or performance for
academic programming. In addition, OnTECH

Econom held several events including a summer
ically picnic, a fall open house, and a spring
Disadva community dinner to which family and
ntaged extended family (including grandparents and

younger siblings) were invited to learn about
our programming and share a meal. In
addition, OnTECH aims to enrich its families’ 
lives, providing students and their families
opportunities beyond just school activities.
For example, families, and not just students,
are given free tickets to attend local theater
events. Moreover, OnTECH makes every
effort to provide free transportation to
students and to their families to events and 
school programming. 

OnTECH is also developing wrap around
support for students and their families. Many
students and their families experienced crisis
and trauma during the year death, criminal
victimization, murder, abandonment. School 
staff support the students but also reached
out to the family to offer support. Examples
of support include making home visits and 

students engaged and enrolled. The summer
session is an enrichment program that not
only provides an elective credit but supports
the social emotional health of the students, 
targeting some of the issues that are
particular hurdles for economically
disadvantaged youth. OnTECH paid for
bussing for students to attend the school
summer session, recognizing that parents
might not be able to transport students. In
addition, OnTECH continues to provide
enrichment opportunities for its families
throughout the summer, inviting them to
evening art programs, theater events and
other events throughout the City that may be
cost prohibitive for economically
disadvantaged families. 

OnTECH is continuing to develop wrap
around services for its families. In the fall 
OnTECH will maintain a regular clothes
pantry. In addition, OnTECH is working to
partner with Upstate Medical Hospital to
provide mental health services for students
on site. OnTECH is also developing a home
care club for students during which students
will learn how to do house hold repairs and
lawn work and small crews will go out to
families in need to assist with repairs. Many
of our students live in housing that is in
disrepair and even unsafe. Students will be
taught how to identify and even repair jobs
around their home. Staff with this skill set 
have been secured for the fall. 

Recognizing that many of our families do not
maintain consistent addresses, and many
families do not have access to email, all 
messaging goes out in duplicate to families
by text, which our data indicates is the most
favorable method that ensures families 
receive the communication. In addition, 
OnTECH has invested in Powerschool to 
ensure that parents have easy access to
school information through the parent portal. 

We recognize that increasing income is
essential for our economically disadvantaged
families. Therefore, we are focusing on our
key design element of finding employment
and ultimately career pathways for every
student. We will continue on creating
programming to support our students by 
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providing transportation for families to get to
courthouses, hospitals, as well as connecting
families to mental health providers. 

Throughout the year, efforts were made to
retain ELL/Multilingual students. ELL students
were provided integrated English as a new
language instruction, as well as intense
interventions provided by qualified
individuals. OnTECH consulted with several 
individuals in the field and provided a
consultant teacher to the New American 
students in each core class. In addition, in 
the second part of the year, students were
given focused additional English
interventions during the morning advisory
period. Licenses for specific software for
English language learners (targeted for

English specific native languages) were purchased to
Langua support each student and provide an
ge individualized plan.
Learner OnTECH reached out to their families and 
s/Multili communities to attempt to build strong
ngual relationships. These efforts were not always
Learner successful, especially within the New
s American populations. Families often rely on

their high school students to provide child
care to younger siblings, attend medical
appointments for family members and
otherwise act as translators. In addition, 
families depend on students for additional
income, requiring them to miss school or
leave school early to go to a job. Despite 

teaching them the skills necessary to find
jobs (e.g., resume and interviewing skills),
the soft skills necessary to retain a job (e.g.,
arriving on time, wearing professional dress)
and assisting our students on getting their
working papers and connecting them with
jobs through the local non profit agencies.
The time during the afternoon advisory is
designated to building these skills. We are
building a network of potential employers in
the area. 

In addition, we have a designated member of
the staff, who was the first community
connector, who is from the community and
whose job description includes working with
families to address their questions and
concerns as well as overseeing continuing
recruitment. 

In the upcoming year, OnTECH plans to
continue its recruitment and retention 
policies and procedures from the prior year
and also build upon them to further deepen
our support for our ELL and Multilingual
students and their families. We will 
strengthen our academic programming by
employing teachers with ELL expertise. This
will allow us to both provide targeted
academic support with Consultant Teachers
as well as integrated English as a New
Language instruction. OnTECH’s unique
credit accrual and recovery model allows ELL
students to gain any missing credits and
have the potential to graduate before aging
out of the system.
In addition, we will be continuing to
strengthen our relationships with the families
and communities of our ELL and bilingual
students so that their families will also feel 
welcomed and supported.
Staff who are joining this school year have
expertise in analyzing transcripts and they
will be developing pathways towards
attaining diplomas, considering the various
legal waivers allotted to ELL students.
Notably, the needs of the New American
families is different than that of Spanish
speaking populations. While Spanish
speaking students may not be designated as
ELL students, they are multi lingual and
many have weak English skills. These
students will also receive targeted 
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efforts to communicate to parents through
their sponsors, community connectors, and
nonprofit agencies to explain legalities
around mandatory school attendance and
provide job opportunities that did not conflict
with the school schedule, several New 
American students missed school regularly. 

During the school year, OnTECH established
relationships with the CSE of all of the home
districts and advocated for our students 

interventions and small group instruction to
improve their English Language skills.
Finally, because many of our English
speaking populations are also struggling with
English we are considering implementing
SIOP (Sheltered Instruction Observation
Protocol (SIOP) throughout the core subject
matter to support English language
acquisition with the ELL, Multi language and
English speaking populations. 

In the 2019 2020 school year, OnTECH
anticipates building on the success of our
first year. We will continue meeting with
parents and service providers to determine
how we can best utilize our unique features
to serve our students with special needs.
This will include continuing the design
elements of the school that support all our
students like the year round schooling,
elimination of bells, hour long classes, hands
on learning, and small classes. In addition,
we will continue to build strong working
relationships with the CSE of the Syracuse
City School District in addition to the various
home districts of our students. In this way,
parents experience a united education team
supporting their students. 

The CSE of Syracuse School District has
explained to our special needs team that
between 8th and 9th grades, the District
often change the services of students from
15:1 to inclusion classroom unless the 
student will be obtaining a local diploma. The
key design element of our classroom is a
15:1 and inclusion so one can argue that
certain students are better served at OnTECH 
than any school in the SCSD. We aim and will
continue to provide an alternative choice and
a choice not available in the District to best 
serve certain students. In many instances,
OnTECH can support services that the
Districts cannot or is not willing to. Just by
way of example, during the 19 20 school
year, we supported a student from West
Genesee School District to use an animal aid 
to address an anxiety disorder. This is the
first time the student has accessed school in 
several years. 

OnTECH will rely on two key strengths to 
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during their annuals and triannuals, ensuring
the students are getting all of the services on
their IEPs. In addition through the service
providers of the various Districts we serve,
OnTECH provided students who require it toStudent have access to paraprofessionals, speechs with language providers, physical therapists,Disabilit occupational therapists, vision services, andies hearing services. 

In addition, OnTECH created a schedule that 
supported students with IEPs, providing
advisories in the morning and the afternoon
that provided added resources to students.
In addition, we added a consulting teacher
model to support all core subjects. 

retain our students with special needs.
Primarily, that which will most directly impact
our students on a daily basis, is the
academic programming and supports that we
can provide our students. In addition to
providing Consultant Teachers that push in to
every core academic class, we will also
provide targeted, small group interventions
and academic skill building. In many cases
this is above and beyond what is required in
IEPs or 504s, but, it is that direct instruction 
and small group setting that our students
need to ensure that they can successfully
complete high school. Every teacher will be
trained in pedagogical approaches to serve
students with special needs and our lesson
plan template will incorporate explicit
scaffolding and differentiation to make all
lessons accessible to all types of learners. 

Secondly, we will continue to build upon our
foundation of community support. By
reaching out to students, parents, and
service providers to coordinate the best
program possible for each student, OnTECH
will be able to retain students with special
needs. OnTECH will continue to invite the 
individual therapists and outside student
advocates to school to learn about and 
inform our programming to serve our
students. We find that when students see all 
of their advocates around the table, they
recognize and understand that we are truly
functioning as a team in their best interest.
This authentic support translates into
student buy in, necessary for students with
special needs to be successful. 

Finally, OnTECH will remain vigilant regarding
providing all legally mandated due process to
students with disabilities regarding
disciplinary action and extending such due
process. For example, OnTECH will scrutinize
the nexus of misconduct with a disability
even if the discipline warrants less than a 10
day suspension and refrain from suspending
if the disability contributed to such
misconduct. Behavior plans and contracts
and restorative justice approaches will be
implemented instead of suspension
whenever possible. 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Created: 07/17/2019 • Last updated: 11/02/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18  6/30/19 

6 2 2 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

3 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
 6/30/19 

0 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 6/30/19 6/3019 

2 8 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18
6/30/19 

6/30/19 

0 3 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	

3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

Two teachers left in the fall. One of the two teachers had some health issues that prevented her from 

fulfilling her abilities in the fall. Another teacher was part of a student altercation in the fall and decided 

that he preferred to work with a younger demographic. It continues to be a challenge to find certified 

high school teachers in Upstate New York. 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Not Applicable 

Thank you 
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Entry 12 Uncertified Teachers 
Created: 08/01/2019 • Last updated: 11/02/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

The table below is reflective of the information collected through the online portal for 
compliance with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff 
qualifications. Enter the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each 

column. For example, a school with 20 full time teachers and 5 half time teachers 

would have an FTE count of 22.5. If more than one column applies to a particular 
teacher, please select one column for the FTE count. Please do not include 

paraprofessionals, such as teacher assistants. 

FTE count of uncertified teachers on 6/30/18, and each uncertified teacher should be 

counted only once. 

1. Total FTE count of uncertified teachers (6 30 19) 

2. FTE count of uncertified teachers with at least three years
of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching
experience (6 30 19) 

3. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are tenured or 
tenure track college faculty (6 30 19) 

4. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years of Teach
for America experience (6 30 19) 

5. FTE count of uncertified teachers with exceptional
business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military
experience (6 30 19) 

6. FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any
of the prior four categories (6 30 19) 

FTE Count of All Uncertified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

2 

FTE Count of All Certified 

Teachers as of 6/30/19 

8 

Thank you. 

FTE Count 

2 

1 

0 

0 

1 

0 
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